
BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, May 11, 2015 

Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 
 

1. Call to Order. 
 

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 

  
 
3. Roll Call. 

 

 
Motion 4. Approve Minutes of the Meeting of April 27, 2015. 

 

 
 5. Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee). 
  a. Third Quarter FY 15 District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures. 
  b. Technical Services Scorecard. 

 

 
 6. Written Communications.  

 

 
7. Oral Communications. 
 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received 
at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address 
and ask questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the subject relates to an agenda item, the 
speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 
minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 
 

 
Motion 8. Approve the Revised Class Description for Business Services Manager/Chief Financial 

Officer (to be reviewed by the Personnel Committee). 
 

Motion 9. Select Board Members to Represent USD on External Committees for FY16 (to be 
reviewed by the Personnel Committee).  
 

Motion 10. Resolution No. _____, Authorize Execution of Contract with New Legal Counsel (to be 
reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee). 
 

 

Page 1 of 147



 
 

Motion 11. Resolution No. ____, Accept Construction of the Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation 
Project from D.W. Nicholson Corporation and Authorize the Attorney for the District 
to Record a Notice of Completion (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee). 
 

Motion 12. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 6 with West Yost Associates 
for Design of the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 3 (to be 
reviewed by the Construction Committee). 
 

Information  13.    Information Items: 
a. Check Register. 
b. Board Expenditures, 3rd Quarter, FY15 (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance 

Committee). 
 

 

Information  14. Committee Meeting Reports. (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings):  
a. Legal/Community Affairs Committee – scheduled for Wednesday, May 6, 2015, at 4:30 p.m. 
b. Construction Committee – scheduled for Thursday, May 7, 2015, at 8:45 a.m. 
c. Budget & Finance Committee – scheduled for Thursday, May 7, 2015, at 4:30 p.m. 
d. Personnel Committee – scheduled for Friday, May 8, 2015, at 9:30 a.m. 
 

 
Information  15.  General Manager’s Report. (Information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 

 

 
Information       16.   Other Business: 

a. Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 
business and are welcome to request information from staff. 

b. Scheduling matters for future consideration.  
 

 
17. Adjournment – The Board will adjourn to the next Rescheduled Regular Meeting in 

the Boardroom on Tuesday, May 26, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary 
District at least one working day prior to the meeting). 
 
If the subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction but not on the agenda, 
the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is calendared.  Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item. 

 
The facilities at the District Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring special accommodations at the meeting should contact the General Manager’s office at (510) 
477-7503 at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND 

Page 2 of 147



NOTICE OF All meetings will be held in
COMMITTEE MEETING the General Manager’s Office

BOARD MEETING OF MAY 11, 2015

Committee Membership:
Budget and Finance Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Pat Kite)
Construction Committee Directors Pat Kite and Jennifer Toy (Alt. – Manny Fernandez)
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Pat Kite and Tom Handley (Alt. –Anjali Lathi)
Legislative Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Jennifer Toy (Alt–Tom Handley)
Personnel Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Jennifer Toy)
Audit Committee Directors Manny Fernandez and Tom Handley (Alt. Jennifer Toy)

Legal/Community Affairs Committee, Wednesday, May 6, 2015, at 4:30 p.m.

10. Resolution No. _____, Authorize Execution of Contract with New Legal Counsel.
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Construction Committee, Thursday, May 7, 2015, at 8:45 a.m.

11. Resolution No. ____, Accept Construction of the Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project from
D.W. Nicholson Corporation and Authorize the Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of
Completion.

12. Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 6 with West Yost Associates for Design
of the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 3.

______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Budget & Finance Committee, Thursday, May 7, 2015, at 4:30 p.m.

5. Monthly Operations Report.
a. Third Quarter FY 15 District wide Balanced Scorecard Measures.
b. Technical Services Scorecard.

13a. Board Expenditures, 3rd Quarter, FY15.
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Personnel Committee, Friday, May 8, 2015, at 9:30 a.m.

8. Approve the Revised Class Description for Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer.

9. Select Board Members to Represent USD on External Committees for FY16.

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors.
(Gov. Code Section 11123)

Committee Meetings are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken.

Page 3 of 147



MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

April 27, 2015

CALL TO ORDER

President Fernandez called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, President 
  Jennifer Toy, Vice President  
  Tom Handley, Secretary
  Pat Kite, Director
  Anjali Lathi, Director

STAFF: Paul Eldredge, General Manager
  Dave O’Hara, District Counsel
  Rich Cortés, Business Services Manager 
  Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager 
  James Schofield, Collection Services Manager  
  Armando Lopez, Treatment & Disposal Services Manager
  Robert Simonich, Fabrication, Maintenance, & Construction Manager
  Jamie Rojo, Accounting Technical Specialist
  Regina McEvoy, Assistant to the GM/Board Secretary

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF APRIL 13, 2015

It was moved by Director Lathi, seconded by Secretary Handley, to Approve the Minutes of the 
Board of Director’s Meeting held April 13, 2015.  Motion carried unanimously.

MONTHLY OPERATIONS REPORT FOR MARCH 2015
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  General Manager Eldredge 
reported the following:

Odor Complaints:  There was one odor complaint in March from Fremont.  District staff 
investigated the complaint and found a light grease odor emanating from the USD main.  
Environmental Compliance staff inspected a nearby restaurant tied to the main and 
found them to be in compliance.  Staff will continue to monitor for reoccurrence of the 
odor.  At the Budget & Finance Committee meeting, a question was raised regarding 
the distance from the site of the odor and the nearest residence.  General Manager 
Eldredge stated the nearest residence is approximately 650 feet from the site of the 
odor. 
Safety:  

o There was one first aid incident in March.  An employee working in a TV truck
was overcome by carbon monoxide fumes due to wind directing truck exhaust 

Page 4 of 147



into the truck.  The employee was taken to urgent care and returned to work the 
next day.  The TV trucks will undergo inspection to prevent reoccurrence of this 
issue. 

o The employee that reported a work related injury in February is off work and 
awaiting surgery.

o The Security Guard at the vehicle gate has corrected the tailgating issue, and we 
have reduced the number of unidentified vehicles entering the facility.

o Safety staff worked hard to ensure the safety of our guests who attended the Co-
Gen ribbon cutting ceremony.  

Personnel:  The District selected Koff & Associates to conduct recruitments for Human 
Resources Administrator, Business Services Manager, and Business Services Coach.  
Effective March 1, 2015, all employees’ PERS contributions were increased by 1.5% 
which brought the total “classic” employee contribution to PERS to 6.5%.  This increase 
was part of the phased approach to having all District employees pay the full PERS 
employee contribution of 8%.  Also effective March 1, 2015, classified employees 
received a 3.5% COLA increases.

Rich Cortes stated: 
Investments:  The Districts average monthly yield has improved, and was above .5%.
Revenues/Proceeds:  Capacity fees received in March included $100,000 from Chick-
Fil-A, $76,000 from Milan Catering, and $164,000 from Catellus.  Capacity fees at the 
end of March were at 118% of budget.  The District received $83,000 in field inspection 
fees and $21,000 in plan check fees.
Expenses:  District expenses included $344,000 for the Cogen Project, and $176,000 
for Primary Digester #5. Expenses by work group are below budget.

WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS

There were no written communications.

ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

There were no oral communications.

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE AN AGREEMENT AND TASK
ORDER NO. 1 WITH THE COVELLO GROUP, INC. FOR PROVIDING CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE NEWARK BACKYARD SANITARY SEWER 
REPLACEMENT PROJECT PHASE 2 AND MISCELLANEOUS SPOT REPAIRS PROJECT 
- PHASE 6

This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee.  Technical Services Manager 
Ghossain stated the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 2 is part of 
a three phased project to improve the existing sewer system within the residential 
neighborhood located north of the intersection of Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street in Newark.  
Phase 2 will include relocation of 93 sanitary sewer laterals to new sanitary sewer mains to be
constructed.  Phase 6 of the Miscellaneous Spot Repairs Project will repair broken or sagging 
sewer pipes at six sites throughout the District; three sites in Union City and three sites in 
Fremont.  Staff recommended the Board award construction management services for both 
projects to one consultant for efficiency and cost-savings for the District.

Page 5 of 147



It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by Vice President Toy, to Authorize the General 
Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with The Covello Group, Inc. for Providing 
Construction Management Services for the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Replacement Project 
Phase 2 and Miscellaneous Spot Repairs Project - Phase 6.  Motion carried unanimously.

AUTHORIZE THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE TASK ORDER NO. 2 WITH WEST 
YOST ASSOCIATES FOR PROVIDING DESIGN SERVICES FOR THE PLANT FACILITIES 
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee. Technical Services Manager 
Ghossain stated the scope of services for Task Order No. 2 included project management, 
detailed design, preparation of contract documents, and bid period services for the Plant 
Facilities Improvements Project and the Sodium Hypochlorite Tanks and Piping Replacement 
Project.  

It was moved by Director Kite, seconded by Director Lathi, to Authorize the General Manager 
to Execute Task Order No. 2 with West Yost Associates for Providing Design Services for the 
Plant Facilities Improvements Project. Motion carried unanimously.

APPROVE A MOTION TO RESCHEDULE THE MAY 25, 2015, BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING

General Manager Eldredge stated the second regularly scheduled meeting of the Board of 
Directors in May falls on Memorial Day.  Staff recommended the Board reschedule said 
meeting to be held Tuesday, May 26, 2015, at 7:00 p.m. 

It was moved by Secretary Handley, seconded by Vice President Toy, to Approve a Motion to 
Reschedule the May 25, 2015, Board of Directors Meeting to May 26, 2015.  Motion carried 
unanimously.

INFORMATION ITEMS:

Check Register
All questions were answered to the Board’s satisfaction.

Cal-Card Quarterly Activity Report
This item was reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee.  Business Services Manager 
Cortes stated the FY 15 third quarter report covered Cal-Card transactions for the billing period 
of December 23, 2014 through March 22, 2015.  There were 245 transactions totaling 
$76,775.99 during the third quarter.

Certificates of Merit to Union Sanitary District’s Class I Permitted Industries
This item was reviewed by the Legal/Community Affairs Committee.  Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain stated the Certificates of Merit is an annual event held to recognize 
industries that have exceeded the requirements of their wastewater discharge permits during 
the prior calendar year and have demonstrated continued commitment to protecting the 
environment.  The District has invited 32 Significant Industrial Users (SIUs) with Class I 
Wastewater Discharge Permits to receive Certificates of Merit at 3:00 p.m. on May 28, 2015. 

Page 6 of 147



Third Quarterly Report on the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) for FY 15
This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee.  Technical Services Manager 
Ghossain stated that in June 2014, the Board approved the FY 15 CIP budget in the amount 
of $14.87 million for design and construction of 21 projects.  CIP expenditures up to             
March 31, 2015, were below third quarter projections by $11,000.

Status of Priority 1 CIP Projects
This item was reviewed by the Construction Committee.  Technical Services Manager 
Ghossain stated the status of Priority 1 CIP projects is reviewed by the Executive Team at the 
end of each quarter, and the status report is presented to the Board.  For FY’15, nine projects 
were ranked as Priority 1 and the remaining twelve were ranked as Priority 2.  

Report on the EBDA Commission Meeting of April 16, 2015
Secretary Handley reported the following:

The Commission unanimously approved reports submitted by the General Manager, 
Managers Advisory Committee, Financial Management, Regulatory Affairs, Operation 
& Maintenance, Personnel, and Ad-Hoc Committees.
The O&M Committee reported the MDF sodium bisulfite replacement is complete, and 
EBDA has realized a savings of approximately $60,000 this fiscal year.
A Closed Session was held to discuss labor negotiations for the Operations & 
Maintenance Manager.  Reportable action from the Closed Session included amending 
the title of Deputy General Manager to Superintendent of Operations & Maintenance.

Discuss Topics for the General Manager Check-in Workshop Scheduled for              
April 30, 2015
General Manager Eldredge presented the following topics of discussion for the Workshop:  
Compensation Plan, Collection Services 3rd Coach Update, Goals for FY 2016, and Schedule 
and Process for General Manager Annual Performance Evaluation.     

COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS:

The Legal/Community Affairs, Construction, and Budget & Finance Committees met. 

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT:

General Manager Eldredge reported the following:  
The Balanced Scorecard report originally scheduled to be presented at the second 
Board meeting in May has been rescheduled to the first Board meeting in May due to a 
scheduling conflict.  
Environmental Compliance staff participated in the Earth Day event held at Washington 
Hospital in Fremont on Saturday, April 25, 2015. District staff received 217 pollution 
prevention pledges, accepted 36 mercury thermometers, and collected over 160 pounds
of expired medications.  At the event, staff received multiple inquiries about reclaimed 
water.  General Manager Eldredge and Communications Coordinator Powell will be 
working on reclaimed water fact sheet to be used as a resource for the Board and 
District staff.

Page 7 of 147



General Manager Eldredge has been in communication with Alameda County Water 
District’s General Manager to explore reclaimed water options and concepts.  Details 
will be shared as they become available.
District staff have been working diligently to prepare for the Open House to be held 
10:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m. on Saturday, May 9, 2015.  

OTHER BUSINESS:
There was no other business.

ADJOURNMENT:

The meeting was adjourned at 7:49 p.m. to the Check-in with the General Manager Workshop 
in the Boardroom on Thursday, April 30, 2015, at 6:30 p.m.

The Board will then adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting in the Boardroom on Monday, 
May 11, 2015, at 7:00 p.m.  

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST:

_________________________   __________________________
REGINA McEVOY     TOM HANDLEY
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY

APPROVED:

__________________________
MANNY FERNANDEZ
PRESIDENT

Adopted this 11th day of May, 2015

Page 8 of 147



 

Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

Date: May 11, 2015

To: Board of Directors – Union Sanitary District 
  

From: Paul Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
  Laurie Brenner, Organizational Performance Program Manager
Subject:  Agenda Item No. 5a –Meeting of May 11, 2015

Third Quarter FY 15 District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures
Recommendation:
Information only.

Background:
This report summarizes progress meeting the District’s strategic objectives through the third 
quarter of fiscal year 2014-15. 

Safety

The District experienced one employee injury (right hand) during the third quarter of FY 15
but has exceeded the target for the year with 4 total accidents with lost days YTD. There 
have been no other OSHA reportable accidents in FY15 and with no additional incidents of 
vehicle or equipment accidents/damage in Q3, the YTD remains on target with two minor 
accidents with a total cost of just $444.18. Any additional vehicular incident in Q4 will 
negatively impact attainment of our annual target.

The average FTE limited duty time was 0.67 for the quarter, raising the YTD to 0.70.  This 
measure will exceed the annual target, regardless of District performance in Q4. The total 
costs for limited duty/other ½ wages has also exceeded the annual target by approximately 
$3,100 at this point.

The X-Mod for the District is just above target at 1.01 (target <1.0), a significant 
improvement over the previously assessed value of 1.16.

The only other measure that will not meet the annual target based on YTD performance is 
the average % of targeted employees trained versus plan (Safety specific).  YTD is at 78%, 
against our annual target of > 90%; which cannot be achieved this year. Most teams have 
now completed the training and all others are working to schedule make-up sessions. 

See Table 1:  Safety Objectives and Measures, for District performance against all safety 
measures in Q1.

Page 9 of 147



Agenda Item No. 5a
Meeting of 5/11/15
Page 2

Table 1:  Safety Objectives and Measures

Objectives Measures FY 15 to 
Date

Annual 
Target FY14 FY 13 Current FY 

Comments

Reduce the 
number of 
accidents

Total accidents 
with lost days 

Other OSHA 
reportable 
accidents

4 
0 

<4 

1 

0 

2 

4 

In Q1-Left hand 
8/12/14; right 
shoulder reported 
8/14/14, occurred on 
5/25/14; left knee in 
Q20 

Reduce the 
impact of 
accidents on 
employees 
and the 
District

Ave FTE lost time
Cost lost time 

0.36

$27,397

<0.5

<$46,883

0.05

$4,897

0.25

$19,611

Costs currently at 
58% of annual target

Ave FTE limited 
duty

Cost limited duty

0.70 
<0.5

<$23,442

0 

0 

0.15

$6404

76% of annual target 
by Q2; annual target 
exceeded in Q3$26, 545

X-mod 1.01 <1.0 0.95 0.85 

Annual measure;
significant 
improvement over 
previously assessed 
value of 1.16

Incidents of vehicle 
or equipment 
damage

2 <2 4 2 
No additional 
incidents in Q3 with 
District at fault

Costs associated 
with vehicles or 
equipment

$444.18 <$5000 $7,265 $0 No costs reported in 
Q2 or Q3

Page 10 of 147



Agenda Item No. 5a
Meeting of 5/11/15
Page 3

Table 1:  Safety Objectives and Measures, continued

Objectives Measures FY 15 to 
Date

Annual 
Target FY 14 FY 13 Current FY 

Comments

Identify and 
correct poor 
practices and 
potential 
hazards

# Facility 
inspections 3 4 4 4 Pump stations 

inspected in Q3

% of areas of 
concern 
corrected within 
45 days

94% >90% 92% 93%
Will begin deeper 
analyses of issues in 
FY16

# management 
work site 
observations 214 >266 /yr 323 332

Numbers updated to 
accurately reflect 
efforts not previously 
captured

Implement 
industry best 
practices

# best practices 
site visits 1 >2 2 2 

None planned in Q1 
or Q2; OPPM visited 
Hertz Fleet offices in 
Q3 on vehicle 
replacement criteria

Communicate 
our 
commitment 
to safety

# GM 
communication 
on status of 
safety program & 
performance

7 >4 6 7 

Safety Strategy 
update in Q1; 
multiple in Q2; Q3- 
new injury update 
and CA Sanitation 
Risk Management 
Authority Award 
announcement

# safety strategy 
reviews 
conducted by ET 
and EHSPM

5 6 6 6 

Reviews of prior and 
drafted strategies in 
Q1, current strategy 
in Q2; two ET 
reviews in Q3

Increase 
employee 
awareness

Educate 
employees in 
safe work 
practices

# of major safety 
training events 
offered

% of targeted 
employees 
trained

7 7 

>90%

7 

91.8% 

5 

96.6% 

Hazmat Handler in 
Q1; Forklift, 
Excavation, 
Construction Flagger, 
Earthquake Hazards I 
the Workplace in Q2;
multiple teams 
missed Confined 
Space practical in Q3

78%

Positive 
Responses on 
Employee Safety 
survey

NA >75% 83% NA Not issued yet

Green = met or exceeded target; or projected to meet annual target 
Yellow = will not meet annual target if trend continues; needs attention
Red = Will not meet annual target by >10%; corrective action needed

Page 11 of 147



Agenda Item No. 5a
Meeting of 5/11/15
Page 4

Operational Excellence

The District is meeting targets for most operational excellence measures YTD. Exceptions are 
explained below.

The % Budget expended-Operating Expenditures measure was slightly below target value at 
68%, which is just 3% below targeted range at the end of Q3; however, this is not a material 
concern per the Principal Financial Analyst. 

Although there were no new adverse environmental impacts during Q3, the annual target has 
been exceeded (one incident YTD against the goal of zero).

The % Timeline projects on schedule measure is at 67% YTD, just 0.5% below the target 
value (not projected to be a material concern). 

The target number of individual competency assessments for the Collections Services team 
was raised significantly from 27 in FY 14 to 52 in FY 15; however, only 21 total have been 
completed as of the end of Q3, which is of concern (40.4% of planned annual total). 
Management and team changes throughout the year have impacted this measure. Projected 
annual totals will likely not make target; however, there will be a significant effort made in Q4 
to close the gap. 

On a related note, it has been identified that new, journey-level modules for the current CS 
staff are needed and will add more value (most training was generated for entry-level). That 
material was in development in Q3 and will continue until completed.

The percentage of the District staff participating in the redesigned Alternate Compensation 
Goals Program in FY15 will be calculated in at the end of Q4.

See Table 2, Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures, for District performance 
against all operational measures through Q3.  

See Table 3 for a list of public relations activities completed to date in FY 15. 

Page 12 of 147



Agenda Item No. 5a
Meeting of 5/11/15
Page 5

Table 2:  Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures

Objectives Measurements FY 15 to 
Date

Annual 
Target FY 14 FY 13 Comments/

Progress

Stewardship:
Demonstrate 
responsible 
stewardship of assets 
and the environment

Be prepared for 
emergencies

Progress meeting 
public relation program 
goals:  
% quarterly milestones 
met

# emergency 
preparedness drills or 
training events

67% 

4 

>90%

3 

98%

3 

111%

2 

90% of planned activities 
completed in Q3; YTD total 
is at 67%

All teams trained on 
Earthquake Preparedness in 
Q2; annual goal already 
achieved’ County earthquake 
exercise with USD 
representation in Q3

Service: Provide 
reliable, high quality 
service

Total number of 
adverse impacts USD 
activities have on 
external customers

3 <10 12 7 

Q1-Misinformation leading 
to financial loss and new 
claim pending; Q2- sewer 
not connected (from 1999) 
identified and resolved; Q3-
roots in main caused 
plumbing issue

Response to Contact 
USD messages: 
% within 3 days

95.8% >90% 95% 48/50 in Q1; 22/23 in Q2;
46/48 in Q3

Response time to 
service calls: % within 
1 hour

97.5% >95% 97.1% 98% 
83 call outs in Q1; 115 in 
Q2 (Q1 value updated ); 80 
in Q3

Fiscal responsibility:
Ensure funding for 
critical programs and 
projects, while 
maintaining 
comparable rates

Accurately project and 
control costs

Operating (previously 
ECB) Expenditures, % 
of Board approved 
budgeted

68% 95-103% 95% 97% Not a concern- only 3% off 
target range by end of Q3 

Priority 1 Special 
Projects Expenditures 
(previously Priority 
Non-ECB), % of 
budgeted

63% 80-110% 84% 95% 

Residential Sewer 
Service Charges 15.3% <33rd  11.5th 12th

Survey from 1/15/15

# regional projects 
with financial benefit 3 >3 2 4 

Target changed to >3  for FY 
15; Continued participation in 
Bay Area Chemical 
Consortium, Bay Area 
Consortium for Water and 
Wastewater Education, CASA 

Asset Management:
Manage and 
maintain assets and 
infrastructure 

# critical asset 
failures; no negative 
impact

# failures with 
negative impact

0 

0 

<2 

0 

1 

0 

0 

0 

# priority CIP projects 
completed 96% 85% of 

planned 9 11

FY 15 Target changed from 
100% to 85%;              9/9 
planned in Q1; 8/9 in Q2- 
Cogen remains behind 
schedule; anticipate 
completion in February 2015;
9/9 on track or completed in 
Q3

Page 13 of 147



Agenda Item No. 5a
Meeting of 5/11/15
Page 6

Objectives Measurements FY 15 to 
Date

Annual 
Target FY 14 FY 13 Comments/

Progress

Environmental 
Protection:
Maintain our ability to 
meet current and 
future regulations

Implement projects 
and programs that 
benefit the 
environment

# adverse impacts on 
environment 1 0 1 0 

10/28/14 incident in 
Fremont on Palm Avenue;
445 of 495 gals captured 
and 5 gals (est.) made it to 
State waters; roots were 
causal factor; no issues n 
Q3

#  Category 2/3 
overflows 3 <10 4  

Q1-Cedar Street event on 
9/2/14; Q2- 10/1/15 and 
10/10/15 in Fremont; both 
Cat 3 events and all 
material captured; 
structural failures were 
causal; no issues in Q3

# Regional projects 
with environmental 
benefit

3 >3 2 2 

Target changed to >3  for 
FY 15; BAPPG Pollution 
Prevention Program 
activities, ACWD Water 
Conservation Program;
Green Business 
Certifications Program

Efficiency: Optimize 
processes; use 
technology effectively

See Timeline and 
Team Scorecards

Planning: Plan for 
long-term financial, 
project and staffing 
needs

% of Timeline projects 
on schedule 67% >90% 55%

13/26 on track or 
completed in Q1; 15/26 in 
Q2; 16/24 in Q3- only 0.5% 
behind based on equal 
distribution across quarters

Employees:
Maintain a highly 
competent, flexible 
workforce 

% of planned 
competency-based 
training milestones 
completed

85.00% 100% 66% 155% Updated all quarters with 
new info from teams

# CS Assessments 
completed 21 52 22 38

Target increased from 27 to
52 in FY15; 4 assessments 
in Q1; 6 in Q2; 11 in Q3; 
corrective actions 
underway

Labor Relations:
Foster a collaborative 
employee-
management 
relationship that 
encourages new ideas 
and continuous
improvement

Total % of employees 
participating in District 
taskforces or 
committees

54.78% 45%-55% 51% 52% 

Reported 2nd and 4th qtrs.

Q2- 63/115 non-
management EE’s involved

Green = met or exceeded target; or projected to meet annual target 
Yellow = will not meet annual target if trend continues; needs attention
Red = Will not meet annual target by >10%; corrective action needed
White= No target identified

Page 14 of 147



Agenda Item No. 5a
Meeting of 5/11/15
Page 7

Table 3: Public Relations Activities FY 15 

Project Goal/Milestones YTD

USD website Update once a month;
Progress on upgrade project

Behind

Press Releases 4 per year; post on web- Welcome Paul Eldredge in 
Q1; Ring Recovery and Safe Meds Disposal in Q2;
Co-Gen Ribbon Cutting

Newsletter Twice a year (change for FY15); Format changed; 
“Spring 2015” newsletter issued; 2nd pending

Community Outreach: 
3-4 events/year (items 
listed are examples 
only)

Earth Day Fair (4th qtr)

Newark Days Fair

Plant Tours as requested- no target, but did 3 in Q1

Outreach to 5th grade teachers

5th grade presentations, 35+ /year- normal to have 
none in Q1; 13 presentations in Q2; 43 in Q3
Alameda County Science & Engineering Fair Judge
(District usually has a rep participate as a Judge)

Career Outreach/Fairs in  Jr High or High School;
BACWA event in March
Career outreach to colleges or other groups:
BAYWORK, CWEA- Chabot College presentation in 
Q1 by TPO/CIP (Pipkin and Pachmeyer)
ROP/Solano College/BACWWE support

Business Outreach Industrial Advisory Council meetings; December 
2014, subject- Emergency Preparedness
Green Business certification outreach ; as 
needed/requested
Certificate of Merit Presentations (4th qtr) Pending

Civic Outreach Annual Presentations to Fremont & Newark City 
Councils; League of Women Voters joint 
presentation with ACWD by GM and Lion’s Club 
presentation also in Q2

CIP Public Meetings As necessary

Check mark above means on target for the year

Page 15 of 147



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy

Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer

David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE:  May 4, 2015 

MEMO TO:  Board of Directors – Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer
   Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services

SUBJECT:  Agenda Item No. 5b. - Meeting of May 11, 2015 
Information Item: Balanced Scorecard Report for the Technical 
Services Work Group  

Recommendation:

Information only

Background:

In the past two quarters, the Board has received reports from the Treatment and 
Disposal Work Group and the Collection Services Work Group on the status of their 
Balanced Scorecards. These two reports were based on the ‘process scorecards’ 
developed by the Operating Work Groups. 

The Balanced Scorecard for the Technical Services (TS) Work Group has a different 
look than the Operating Groups Scorecard. Each of the three teams in the TS 
Workgroup has a different focus, therefore, we have not developed a process 
scorecard. Instead, each team has developed its strategic objectives represented in 
their unique scorecards. Each team has selected three to four of its performance 
measures to present which are most representative of the objectives of that team. The
complete scorecard (typically 6-10 measures) is available for the Board’s review. A 
summary of measures is attached, with those presented being highlighted.

The TS Workgroup consists of three teams. Each team is briefly described below:

Capital Improvements Projects Team (CIP Team): The CIP Team is responsible for 
the implementation of the 10-year Capital Improvement Program. Some of the team’s
responsibilities are to: develop the projects scopes, develop contracts for consulting 
services; coordinate input from the operating groups; review plans, specifications and 
reports; hold public information meetings; resolve disputes during construction; monitor 

Page 16 of 147



Agenda Item No. 5b.
Meeting of May 11, 2015 
Page 2 

contract status; review, negotiate and approve change orders; and ensure customer 
satisfaction at the completion of the projects. The team is also responsible for preparing 
in-house design and for providing construction management services for small projects.

The team measures are focused on internal and external customer satisfaction, 
management of District funds and successful quality control of capital projects.

Customer Service Team (CST Team):  This team has a diverse group of 
responsibilities focused on meeting the needs of the District’s commercial, residential 
and internal customers. The team’s responsibilities include: conducting plan reviews, 
issuing permits to individuals and developers; construction inspection of new or repair of 
existing sewers on private property; administering the Sewer Service Charge billing 
program; collecting Capacity Fees from new developments; reviewing and responding 
to tri-city environmental planning documents; and responding to customer inquiries 
related to these responsibilities.

In addition, the CST Team is responsible for the reception area, mail distribution, 
maintenance of the workroom equipment, dispatching trouble calls received from 
customers; and assisting other work groups in providing public information via 
newsletters and press releases.

The team measures are focused on timely completion of plan reviews, dispatching 
trouble calls and collection of fees, providing quality construction inspection of sewer 
facilities and providing high-quality customer service to both external and internal 
customers. 

Environmental Compliance Team (EC Team): This team is responsible for the 
implementation of the District’s Industrial Pretreatment, Pollution Prevention, and Public 
Outreach Programs required as a part of our NPDES Permit, as well as for the 
$309,100 contract with the City of Fremont for the Clean Water Program. Day-to-day 
duties of the team include semi-annual site inspections of the 81 permitted Class I and 
Class II industries; sampling of industrial discharges for compliance with user permit 
conditions; review of permit applications of new industries; education and training on 
industrial production and treatment processes; issuing groundwater discharge permits 
for site clean-up operations; enforcement of Ordinance 36 and other regulations; 
collection and preparation of information for capacity and sewer service charge fees; 
inspection of non-industrial commercial businesses; the restaurant FOG program; and a 
school outreach program.

The EC Team’s measures are related to the protection of District workers, facilities and 
plant from potentially harmful discharges, compliance with Local, State, and Federal 
regulations and requirements, and developing constructive and professional 
relationships with our Industrial and Commercial customers.

Page 17 of 147



Agenda Item No. 5b.
Meeting of May 11, 2015 
Page 3 

Attached is an organizational chart of the TS Workgroup.

The balanced scorecards are presented in a format that shows each team’s mission 
statement and three to four objectives, measures and conclusions. Staff will be 
available at the Board meeting and committee meetings to answer questions about the 
team scorecards.  

PRE/SEG:ks

Attachments:  TS Organizational Chart
TS Teams’ BSC Graphs 
TS Teams’ BSC Measures  

Page 18 of 147



Al
 B

un
yi

Li
lly

 D
eM

el
o

Ti
ffa

ny
 D

ou
gl

as
 (C

as
ua

l E
E)

M
ar

ie
la

 E
sp

in
os

a
G

le
n 

G
in

oc
hi

o
Jo

hn
 H

w
an

g
R

eg
in

a 
M

cE
vo

y
M

ic
he

lle
 P

ow
el

l
C

ar
ol

 R
ic

e 
(T

em
p.

 E
E)

An
dy

 T
rin

h
N

an
cy

 W
al

ke
r

*R
ec

ep
tio

ni
st

   
  

(1
 v

ac
an

cy
)

An
dr

ew
 B

ai
le

C
ur

tis
 B

os
ic

k
D

er
ek

 C
hi

u
C

hr
is

 E
lli

ot
t

M
oh

am
m

ad
 G

ho
ur

y
Th

om
as

 L
am

C
hr

is
 P

ac
hm

ay
er

K
ris

tin
a 

Si
lv

a

D
ou

g 
D

at
ta

w
al

ke
r

Ed
da

 M
ar

as
ig

an
Jo

e 
M

en
do

za
Vi

ct
or

 P
ad

ill
a

Al
ex

 P
ar

ed
es

Aa
ro

n 
R

ob
le

s
Jo

se
 S

ot
o

Ar
ie

l T
ei

xe
ira

Au
dr

ey
 V

ill
an

ue
va

Ja
so

n 
 Y

ea
te

s
*E

C
 In

sp
ec

to
r I

/II
/II

I  
   

(1
 v

ac
an

cy
)

Te
ch

n
ic

al
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
  T

ea
m

R
ol

lie
 A

rb
ol

an
te

C
oa

ch
12

C
ap

ita
l I

m
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 T
ea

m
R

ay
m

on
d 

C
ha

u
   

   
 C

oa
ch 8

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
Te

am

11

Sa
m

i G
ho

ss
ai

n
W

or
k 

G
ro

up
 M

an
ag

er

34

Au
gu

st
 2

00
4

5/
04

/1
5

M
ic

ha
el

 D
un

ni
ng

C
oa

ch

P
ag

e 
19

 o
f 1

47



Capital Improvement Projects Team
Balanced Scorecard—FY 15 

May 2015 

Mission Statement: The Capital Projects Team is committed to providing effective project management, engineering 
services, and administrative support for CIP projects and to our customers.

Objective: Deliver quality 
engineering projects by maximizing 
customer satisfaction on CIP 
projects

Measure: Individual project customer survey 
(operating groups and agencies) regarding 
communication and responsiveness of project 
managers (all projects)

Target: 
90% min

Conclusion: This feedback assists the team in understanding and meeting the expectations of both its internal 
and external customers. 

Page 1 of 3
Page 20 of 147



   Capital Improvement Projects Team
    Balanced Scorecard—FY 15 

May 2015 

Mission Statement: The Capital Projects Team is committed to providing effective project management, engineering 
services, and administrative support for CIP projects and our customers.

Objective: Control cost through 
effective management of consultants 
and construction projects

Conclusion: This data will help project managers better understand and control the effort required by consultants to 
design and manage the construction of CIP projects.

Measure: % of design and construction 
management costs (final amounts) to 
construction cost (base bid amount plus 
change orders and claims)

Target 
20% 
max

Notes:  
Newark Backyard SS Relocation Ph 1 – For such a small project (total construction costs less than $400,000), design consultants 
costs tend to have a higher percentage of the construction cost.  Additionally, this project required extensive public outreach, which 
contributed to the higher design costs.
Jarvis Ave. SS Replacement –.Design and construction management percentages exceeded the target primarily due to the 
additional and extensive potholing and utility coordination involved during the project design phase. 
Cogeneration – The design and construction management percentages exceeded its target due to the need to conduct a predesign 
phase, which included the evaluation of the location of the cogeneration facility and the necessary improvements to the existing 
digester gas collection and conditioning systems.  Another factor included the additional engineering services provided by the design 
consultant during construction due to the large numbers of submittals and Requests for Information from the contractor.  Additionally, 
due to the delay in the completion of construction, there were additional services provided by the construction management 
consultant.  Finally, because the contractor’s bid was very low compared to the Engineer’s Estimate and the second-low bid, the 
design and construction management percentages skewed higher.  

Page 2 of 3Page 21 of 147



Capital Improvement Projects Team
Balanced Scorecard—FY 15 

May 2015 

Mission Statement: The Capital Projects Team is committed to providing effective project management, engineering 
services, and administrative support for CIP projects and to our customers.

Objective: Control cost through effective management 
of consultants and construction projects

Conclusion: This data will assist staff in minimizing errors and omissions costs by improving quality control and by identifying 
potential problems during design.

Measure: % of total contract change order amounts 
(Target is 5% max. for new const., 10% for retrofit) to 
construction cost (base bid amount)

Retrofit 
Target: 
10% Max

New Target:
5% Max

Notes:
Lift Station No. 1 Improvements - Unforeseen CO% exceeded target by 3.3%.  This was due to the installation of additonal
structural anchors to each of the lift pump supports, additional repair of corroded concrete in the launder of Primary Clarifier No. 6, 
and replacement of support beams in one of the lift pump bays.
Boyce Road Lift Station Ph 2 – The E&O CO% exceeded the 1% target due to the underground vault not initially classified as 
explosion-proof during design. The actuators and conduits in the vault had to be changed to explosion-proof type during 
construction.  The two change orders associated with this issue totaled $7,272.37.  
Primary Digester 5 Rehab. –The unforeseen CO% exceeded the target due to the repair of the digester dome steel skirt. It was 
anticipated during design that only spot repairs of the skirt would be needed but during construction, staff discovered corrosion over 
significant portions of the skirt that required repair.
Cogeneration –The E&O and unforeseen CO% exceeded their targets due to the complicated nature of the project.  A couple of 
the larger change orders were related to the BAAQMD air permit (lower carbon monoxide emissions limit) and PG&E 
interconnection agreement (main switchgear protective devices).  There were many coordination issues relating to the various sub-
systems of the cogeneration equipment that required clarification from the design consultant and often resulted in changes to the 
field work.  In addition, there was extensive underground work associated with the building foundation construction and various 
connections to the existing digester gas, natural gas, hot water loop, and electrical underground utilities, which resulted in 
unforeseen change orders.

Page 3 of 3
Page 22 of 147



Customer Service Team
Balanced Scorecard—FY 15 

May 2015 

Measure: Number and amount of refunds and invoices needed 
due to administrative oversight

Mission Statement: To provide high quality service to customers in a courteous and efficient manner; to
enforce the District’s ordinances and specifications for sewer construction and repairs; to process sewer service 
charges for properties served by the District; and to provide reception, communication and resource services.
               

                     

              

Conclusion:  The Sewer Service Charge (SSC) database continues to be updated as information is received.  
Team members are meeting and exceeding the goal which is maximum of five refunds per year.

Objective: Timely and accurate collection 
of fees (SSC, Capacity, and Permit Fees)

TARGET: Maximum 
of 5 refunds per year.

Measure: % plans checked within 10 working daysObjective: Timely plan checking

TARGET: 
Minimum 90% of 
Plans Checked 
within 10 Working 
Days

Conclusion: Team members met and exceeded the plan checking goals 

Page 1 of 2Page 23 of 147



Customer Service Team
Balanced Scorecard—FY 15 

May 2015

Mission Statement: To provide high quality service to customers in a courteous and efficient manner. To enforce 
the District’s ordinances and specifications for sewer construction and repairs.  To process sewer service charges 
for properties served by the District, and to provide reception, communication and resource services.

Objective: Timely dispatch of trouble calls and 
relay service requests

Measure: % of calls relayed within 
10 minutes

Conclusion: Front desk staff is continuing to dispatch trouble calls within 10 minutes of receiving a call.

Target: 
Dispatch 90% 

in 10 min.

Page 2 of 2Page 24 of 147



Environmental Compliance Team
Balanced Scorecard – FY15 

May 2015 

Mission Statement: To effectively and efficiently implement environmental protection and compliance 
programs; to protect District personnel and facilities, public safety, and the environment from deleterious 
discharges; to preserve resources for beneficial use and reuse; to be responsive to the needs of the District, 
business community, and the general public; and to provide innovation and leadership in the areas of pollution 
prevention and industrial and commercial environmental compliance.
                                 

Measure: % positive responses from teacher surveysObjective: Deliver quality public outreach programs

Target: to stay 
within 90% to 

100% of annual 
budget

Conclusion: The team continues to provide quality public outreach programs in a professional manner 
with 100% positive feedback.

Conclusion:  Projecting 90 % of annual budget to be used in FY 15

Objective: To stay within 
the line item budget 
negotiated with the COF for 
the 5-year contract

Measure: % of 
budget spent and 
invoiced

Target: 100% min 

Page 1 of 2
Page 25 of 147



Environmental Compliance Team
Balanced Scorecard—FY 15 

May 2015 

Mission Statement: To effectively and efficiently implement environmental protection and compliance 
programs; to protect District personnel and facilities, public safety, and the environment from deleterious 
discharges; to preserve resources for beneficial use and reuse; to be responsive to the needs of the District, 
business community, and the general public; and to provide innovation and leadership in the areas of pollution 
prevention and industrial and commercial environmental compliance.

Objective: Monitor compliance of Commercial    
                Businesses

Measure: Inspection reports based on COF Business Plan (# of 
Industrial/Commercial & Restaurant inspections completed vs. goal)

Conclusion: The team will continue to exceed goals for conducting sampling of industrial sites.

Conclusion:  Team is projected to meet or exceed the targeted goal for COF contract.

Measure: Sampling events completed based on sampling 
                 plan

Objective:  Monitor compliance of Industrial 
                   Businesses

Page 2 of 2
Page 26 of 147



Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 W

or
k 

G
ro

up
Te

am
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

5
N

ot
e*

 S
ha

de
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

in
 g

ra
ph

s

TE
A

M
O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
M

EA
SU

R
E

C
IP

C
us

to
m

er
 P

er
sp

ec
tiv

e

D
el

iv
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 b
y 

m
ax

im
iz

in
g 

cu
st

om
er

 s
at

is
fa

ct
io

n
on

 C
IP

 P
ro

je
ct

s

In
di

vi
du

al
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
ur

ve
y 

(o
pe

ra
tin

g 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 a
ge

nc
ie

s)
 re

ga
rd

in
g 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

ve
ne

ss
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

s 
(a

ll 
pr

oj
ec

ts
).

Ta
rg

et
: 9

0%
 m

in
.

Tr
ac

k 
nu

m
be

r a
nd

 n
at

ur
e 

of
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
fro

m
 o

ur
 e

xt
er

na
l c

us
to

m
er

s,
 tr

ac
k 

re
sp

on
se

 ti
m

e 
of

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

di
re

ct
ed

 to
 U

SD
.

Fi
na

nc
ia

l P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e

C
on

tro
l c

os
t t

hr
ou

gh
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

s
an

d 
co

ns
tru

ct
io

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
.

%
 o

f d
es

ig
n 

an
d 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

m
an

ag
em

en
t c

os
ts

 (f
in

al
 a

m
ou

nt
s)

 to
 

co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

co
st

 (b
as

e 
bi

d 
am

ou
nt

 p
lu

s 
ch

an
ge

 o
rd

er
s 

an
d 

cl
ai

m
s)

. 
Ta

rg
et

: 2
0%

%
 o

f t
ot

al
 c

on
tra

ct
 c

ha
ng

e 
or

de
r a

m
ou

nt
s 

Ta
rg

et
 is

 5
%

 m
ax

. f
or

 n
ew

 c
on

st
., 

10
%

 fo
r r

et
ro

fit
to

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
 (b

as
e 

bi
d 

am
ou

nt
). 

 P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

of
 

C
ha

ng
e 

O
rd

er
s 

sh
al

l b
e 

se
pa

ra
te

d 
by

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

re
e 

ca
te

go
rie

s:
 

Er
ro

rs
 a

nd
 o

m
is

si
on

s 
– 

Ta
rg

et
 1

%
m

ax
. f

or
 n

ew
 c

on
st

. a
nd

 re
tro

fit
,

U
nf

or
es

ee
n 

fie
ld

 c
on

di
tio

ns
 –

 T
ar

ge
t 3

%
m

ax
. f

or
 n

ew
 c

on
st

.7
%

 fo
r r

et
ro

fit
,

O
w

ne
r r

eq
ue

st
ed

 c
ha

ng
es

 –
 T

ar
ge

t 1
%

 m
ax

. f
or

 n
ew

 c
on

st
.2

%
 fo

r r
et

ro
fit

.

In
te

rn
al

 P
ro

ce
ss

es

M
ai

nt
ai

n 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
an

d 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

so
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

cl
ea

re
r a

nd
 m

or
e 

re
al

is
tic

 p
ro

je
ct

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 
be

tw
ee

n 
O

pe
ra

tin
g 

G
ro

up
s 

an
d 

C
IP

In
te

rn
al

 c
us

to
m

er
s 

su
rv

ey
 (o

pe
ra

tin
g 

gr
ou

ps
) r

eg
ar

di
ng

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

an
d 

re
sp

on
si

ve
ne

ss
 o

f p
ro

je
ct

 m
an

ag
er

s 
(a

ll 
pr

oj
ec

ts
) T

ar
ge

t: 
90

%
 m

in
.

Q
ua

lit
y 

re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 c

oo
rd

in
at

io
n 

of
 s

tu
di

es
, m

as
te

r 
pl

an
s,

 a
nd

 c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
do

cu
m

en
ts

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f c
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
co

st
 (b

as
e 

bi
d 

am
ou

nt
) a

ttr
ib

ut
ab

le
 to

 C
on

tra
ct

 
C

ha
ng

e 
O

rd
er

 a
m

ou
nt

s 
du

e 
to

 e
rr

or
s 

an
d 

om
is

si
on

s 
Ta

rg
et

 1
%

Em
pl

oy
ee

 G
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e

Be
 a

w
ar

e 
of

 in
du

st
ry

 tr
en

ds
 to

 im
pl

em
en

t e
ffi

ci
en

t 
an

d 
co

st
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

te
ch

no
lo

gi
es

# 
of

 id
ea

s 
(tr

ai
ni

ng
, i

nf
or

m
at

io
na

l, 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l, 
te

ch
no

lo
gi

ca
l) 

sh
ar

ed
 a

t t
ea

m
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 –
 T

ar
ge

t 6
 id

ea
s 

sh
ar

ed
/y

ea
r. 

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 3
P

ag
e 

27
 o

f 1
47



Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 W

or
k 

G
ro

up
Te

am
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

5
N

ot
e*

 S
ha

de
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

in
 g

ra
ph

s

TE
A

M
O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
M

EA
SU

R
E

C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
C

us
to

m
er

 P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e

P
ro

vi
de

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l, 
co

ur
te

ou
s 

an
d 

tim
el

y 
se

rv
ic

es
 to

 in
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 e
xt

er
na

l c
us

to
m

er
s

%
 p

os
iti

ve
 re

sp
on

se
s 

on
  c

us
to

m
er

 fe
ed

ba
ck

 s
ur

ve
ys

Fi
na

nc
ia

l P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e

Ti
m

el
y 

an
d 

ac
cu

ra
te

 c
ol

le
ct

io
n 

of
 fe

es
 

(S
S

C
, C

ap
ac

ity
, a

nd
  P

er
m

it 
Fe

es
)

N
um

be
r a

nd
 a

m
ou

nt
 o

f r
ef

un
ds

 a
nd

 in
vo

ic
es

 is
su

ed
 d

ue
 to

 
ad

m
in

is
tra

tiv
e 

ov
er

si
gh

t

In
te

rn
al

 P
ro

ce
ss

es
Ti

m
el

y 
P

la
n 

C
he

ck
in

g
%

 p
la

ns
 c

he
ck

ed
 w

ith
in

 1
0 

w
or

ki
ng

 d
ay

s

A
cc

ur
at

e 
P

la
n 

ch
ec

ki
ng

 a
nd

 in
sp

ec
tio

n
# 

of
 p

ro
bl

em
s 

re
po

rte
d 

w
ith

in
 o

ne
 y

ea
r o

f a
pp

ro
va

l

Ti
m

el
y 

di
sp

at
ch

 o
f t

ro
ub

le
 c

al
ls

 
%

 c
al

ls
 re

la
ye

d 
w

ith
in

 1
0 

m
in

ut
es

 (S
LA

)

Em
pl

oy
ee

 G
ro

w
th

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e

E
nh

an
ce

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 s

ki
lls

 (c
om

pu
te

r, 
ne

w
 

te
ch

no
lo

gy
, u

pd
at

ed
 re

gu
la

tio
ns

, c
ro

ss
-

tra
in

in
g,

 e
tc

.)

N
um

be
r o

f t
ea

m
 m

em
be

rs
 w

ho
 h

av
e 

at
te

nd
ed

 a
t l

ea
st

 o
ne

 
ou

ts
id

e 
tra

in
in

g 
ev

en
t (

no
t i

nc
lu

di
ng

 m
an

da
to

ry
 tr

ai
ni

ng
)

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 3
P

ag
e 

28
 o

f 1
47



Te
ch

ni
ca

l S
up

po
rt

 a
nd

 C
us

to
m

er
 S

er
vi

ce
 W

or
k 

G
ro

up
Te

am
 P

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 M

ea
su

re
s 

Su
m

m
ar

y
Fi

sc
al

 Y
ea

r 2
01

5
N

ot
e*

 S
ha

de
d 

m
ea

su
re

s 
ar

e 
sh

ow
n 

in
 g

ra
ph

s

TE
A

M
O

B
JE

C
TI

VE
M

EA
SU

R
E

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
C

om
pl

ia
nc

e

C
us

to
m

er
 P

er
sp

ec
tiv

e
P

ro
vi

de
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

in
 a

 p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l m
an

ne
r 

w
ith

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

 le
ve

l o
f p

ol
ic

y 
en

fo
rc

em
en

t 
ba

la
nc

ed
 b

y 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

te
ch

ni
ca

l 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n,
 a

dv
ic

e 
an

d 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
.

%
 o

f c
om

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 c

us
to

m
er

s 
du

rin
g 

an
nu

al
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
pr

oc
es

s 
th

at
 in

di
ca

te
 fa

ir 
an

d 
pr

of
es

si
on

al
 b

eh
av

io
r a

nd
re

sp
on

si
ve

ne
ss

%
po

si
tiv

e 
re

sp
on

se
s 

to
 c

us
to

m
er

 s
er

vi
ce

 s
ur

ve
y

D
el

iv
er

 q
ua

lit
y 

P
ub

lic
 O

ut
re

ac
h 

P
ro

gr
am

s
A

ch
ie

ve
 th

e 
P

2 
R

ep
or

t G
oa

l (
40

%
 o

f 1
19

 c
la

ss
ro

om
s 

= 
48

 
pr

es
en

ta
tio

ns
)

%
 o

f p
os

iti
ve

 c
om

m
en

ts
 fr

om
 te

ac
he

rs

Fi
na

nc
ia

l P
er

sp
ec

tiv
e

In
vo

ic
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 fe

es
 fo

r r
ec

ov
er

y 
of

 
co

st
 fr

om
 e

nf
or

ce
m

en
t a

ct
io

ns
.

%
 o

f v
io

la
tin

g 
in

du
st

ria
l u

se
rs

 in
vo

ic
ed

 

S
ta

y 
w

ith
in

 C
ity

 o
f F

re
m

on
t c

on
tra

ct
 li

ne
 

ite
m

 b
ud

ge
t

%
 o

f b
ud

ge
t s

pe
nt

an
d 

in
vo

ic
ed

In
te

rn
al

 P
ro

ce
ss

es
E

ns
ur

e 
In

du
st

ria
l a

nd
 C

om
m

er
ci

al
 

vi
ol

at
io

ns
 a

re
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
ly

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
%

 o
f v

io
la

tio
ns

 a
dd

re
ss

ed
 w

ith
 c

or
re

ct
iv

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

to
 a

ch
ie

ve
 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 a
ll 

or
di

na
nc

es
.

M
on

ito
r c

om
pl

ia
nc

e 
of

 in
du

st
ria

l a
nd

 
co

m
m

er
ci

al
 b

us
in

es
se

s
%

 o
f i

ns
pe

ct
io

n 
re

po
rts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
C

O
F 

bu
si

ne
ss

 p
la

n

S
am

pl
in

g 
ev

en
ts

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

sa
m

pl
in

g 
pl

an
Em

pl
oy

ee
 G

ro
w

th
 a

nd
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t P

er
sp

ec
tiv

e
C

om
pl

et
e 

m
an

da
to

ry
 tr

ai
ni

ng
A

ve
ra

ge
 p

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
of

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 c
om

pl
et

ed

Tr
an

sf
er

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

fro
m

 e
xt

er
na

l 
co

m
m

itt
ee

s 
an

d 
co

nf
er

en
ce

s
%

 o
f i

nf
o 

sh
ar

ed
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

nu
m

be
r o

f c
om

m
itt

ee
s 

an
d 

co
nf

er
en

ce
s 

(in
fo

, m
at

er
ia

ls
)

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 3
P

ag
e 

29
 o

f 1
47



 

 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE:  May 11, 2015  

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 

FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Rich Cortes, Business Services Work Group Manager 
  Judi Berzon, Human Resources Administrator 

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of May 11, 2015 
APPROVE THE REVISED CLASS DESCRIPTION FOR BUSINESS SERVICES MANAGER/CHIEF 
FINANCIAL OFFICER  

Recommendation:  
Approve the revised class description, Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer.  
 
Background:   

With the upcoming retirement of Richard A. Cortes, Business Services Manager, the District will begin an 
executive search for an outstanding candidate to replace this key position.  

Based on previous Board direction, staff has revised the existing class description to clearly express the 
key financial responsibilities of this classification. The requirements of the current class description 
permitted qualifying experience in a non-financial background. The revised class description requires a 
four-year degree in finance, accounting, or public or business administration and seven years of 
increasingly responsible experience in public financing and accounting, and stipulates that certification as 
a Certified Public Account (CPA) is highly desirable. 

Attachments 

Page 30 of 147



Union Sanitary District 

Business Services Manager/Chief Administrative Financial Officer  
Class Description 

 
 
DefinitionDEFINITION 
 
Reporting to the General Manager and under administrative direction , the Business Services 
Manager/Chief Administrative Financial Officer (BS Manager/CFO) manages the Business Services 
Work Group, including the development and implementation of work group and team goals, 
objectives, and priorities for each service area; and manages the District-wide administrative 
functions of financial analyses; centralized purchasing, central stores, and inventory control; 
safety; risk management; organizational performance; training; and information technology. 
Human Resources resides within the Business Services Work Group; however, the Human 
Resources Administrator works directly with the General Manager to strategically manage the 
District’s Human Resources Program.oversees a wide variety of District-wide support functions, 
including budgeting, accounting, internal audit, investments, and financial analyses; centralized 
purchasing, central stores, and inventory control; risk management; human resources; quality;  
training; and information systems. The Business Services Manager monitors legal, economic, and 
business developments in finance, public purchasing, information technology, risk management, 
and human resources; and recommends and initiates improved work methods and procedures. 
 
The BS Manager/CFO works directly with the General Manager, Board of Directors, and Executive 
Team to develop, implement, and manage District-wide goals, objectives and strategic planning 
as well as financing plans set forth by policy, ordinance, and Board approval. 
 
This position manages all accounting and finance functions, including but not limited to financial 
reporting, short- and long-range economic forecasts and analyses, budgets, management of 
unfunded liabilities, audits, investment management, contracts, long-term debt issuance, 
revenue, cash flow, and rate setting. 
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
 
Technical Responsibilities 
 
Safety  

Develops, promotes, supports, and ensures compliance with District-wide, work group, 
and team safety policies, procedures, work practices, and safety initiatives. 
Participates in investigations of serious accidents.  

 
Financial Operations  
Financial Operations 

Ensures compliance with IRS, PERS, ICMA and other legal requirements relating to sound 
financial and administrative operations.  
Ensures the District’s financial operations are consistent with principles of good 
stewardship of public funds and consistent with the District’s Mission and values. 
Prepares or directs others in preparing the budget and forecasting of cash flows for the 
operating and capital expenditures and revenues and identifies impacts on the current 
and future rate structure. 

Page 31 of 147



Annually reviews the District's investment policy and recommends revisions to the Board 
of Directors.  
Directs the District’s investments on an ongoing basis. 
Oversees establishment of financial controls and review of expenditures for conformance 
with approved budgets.  
This classification ensures compliance with regulatory and governmental accounting and 
financial reporting standards, including IRS, SCO, GASB, GAAP, PERS, ICMA and other legal 
requirements relating to sound financial and administrative operations and consistency 
of financial operations with principles of good stewardship of public funds and the 
District’s strategic objectives. 
Oversees and participates in preparation of the District’s O&M and CIP budgets and 
forecasting of cash flows for the operating budget and capital expenditures and revenues; 
identifies impacts on the current and future rate structure; oversees establishment of 
financial controls and review of expenditures for conformance with approved budgets; 
and presents budget recommendations to the Board of Directors for their approval. 
Serves as the District’s Board-appointed Treasurer; manages the District’s investments 
and portfolio, maximizing income and safety through daily and long-range investment 
policies; administers bond programs and secures tax-exempt and other types of 
financing; coordinates, reviews, evaluates, and recommends improvements to 
administrative and financial internal control systems and procedures to ensure audit 
compliance; and annually review the District’s investment policy and recommends 
revisions to the Board of Directors.  
Ensures conformance with Proposition 218 legal notification for rate changes.  
Directs and participates in the preparation of a variety of records and reports ensuring 
timeliness, accuracy, and compliance with appropriate laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
prudent fiscal transparency. 
Presents budget recommendations to the Board of Directors for their approval. 
 

 
Information TechnologyInformation Technology 

Oversees implementation of the IT Master Plan. 
Ensures that District employees receive timely and effective assistance through an 
automated Help Desk function.; and periodically evaluates the cost effectiveness of 
existing software to meet user needs 
Oversees and approves IT renewal and replacement expenditures and oversees periodic 
external security audit. 
Oversees periodic external security audit and eEnsures that recommendations deemed 
appropriate by the Executive Team are implemented. 
Periodically evaluates the cost effectiveness of existing software to meet user needs. 

 
Purchasing and Risk Management Purchasing and Risk Management 

Oversees the District’s general liability, property damage, vehicular physical damage, 
catastrophe insurance, loss recovery, and crime insurance programs. 
Coordinates annual application to CSRMA for liability and property insurance.  
Periodically reviews District insurance coverage. 
Assists the Purchasing Agent to resolve contract law issues or interpretation of the 
District’s purchasing policy with regard to specific situations and reviews recommended 
changes to the District’s Purchasing policy. 
Reviews recommended changes to the District’s purchasing policy and procedures. 

Page 32 of 147



Oversees the administration of claims against the District to ensure: timely response, 
appropriate referral to legal counsel, timely communication with the General Manager 
and Board of Directors, and resolution or settlement of claims consistent with the 
Mission and values of the District. 

                                                                       
Human Resources and Training 

Provides advice to Human Resources staff on matters affecting interpretation and 
implementation of HR policies. 
Oversees coordination of the development and implementation of the Training Module 
Program. 
Provides strategic direction in developing the tracking and reporting of training through 
computerized systems; oversees development of procedures for tracking training. 

 
Quality  
Organizational Performance 

Supports the Quality CoordinatorOrganizational Performance Program Manager in the 
development and implementation of quality initiatives at the team, work group, and 
District levels. 
Works with the OPPM and Executive Team to develop and implement Balanced 
Scorecard District-wide initiatives, goals, measures, and implementation plans. 

 
Management Responsibilities 
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer is a resource to the Board of Directors on 
technical and management issues. This class represents the District at state, regional, and local 
meetings as well as on District task forces and committees. 
 
The incumbent participates as a member of the USD Executive Team in  District-wide policy and 
planning activities, including development of  the District’s Balanced Scorecard and other 
strategic planning activities; provides advice and counsel regarding strategic policy and problem 
solving issues related to assigned workgroup and the District overall; develops performance 
measures and implements objectives to meet District goals; supports district-wide programs and 
initiatives; ensures that team plans are in alignment with District-wide and work group strategic 
plans. 
 
The BS Manager/CFO Business Services Manager coordinates staff and resources to implement 
plans, including technical and organizational activities; develops and administers the annual 
budget; manages and carries out technical and administrative projects; and occasionally performs 
the duties of General Manager on an interim basis in the General Manager’s absence. 
 
The BS Manager/CFO develops, promotes, supports and ensures compliance with District-wide, 
work group, and team safety policies, procedures, and safety initiatives and participates in 
investigations of serious accidents. 
 
The BS Manager/CFO establishes appropriate service and staffing levels; monitors and evaluates 
the efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and procedures; and works with staff 
to allocate resources accordingly. 
 

Page 33 of 147



This position oversees and participates in the development and administration of the Business 
Services Work Group; approves the forecast of funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials, 
and supplies; and approves expenditures and implements budgetary adjustments as needed. 
 
This position monitors legal, economic, and business developments in finance and portfolio 
management, public purchasing, information technology, risk management, and human 
resources; and recommends and initiates improved work methods and procedures as 
appropriate. 
 
The BS Manager/CFO serves as liaison with federal, state, regional, county, city, and other 
agencies as necessary. 
 
 
Leadership 
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer carries out recruitment and selection, 
employee relations, performance management, and recognition activities. The BS Manager/CFO 
supervises and also mentors the BS Coach and provides general management and mentoring (as 
required) of the Human Resources Administrator Coaches in carrying out their responsibilities in 
each of the areas stated above and assists Coaches to work effectively with individual employees 
and teams.  
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer may directly supervise one of the BS teams 
depending on their knowledge, skills, and abilities. 
 
The incumbent supports the Business Services Coach in working with the Quality 
CoordinatorOrganizational Performance Program Manager (OPPM) and BS teams to apply the 
principles of total quality to day-to-day operations, including the development and application of 
benchmarking data, other work group metrics, and process improvements; and supports the Star 
Point and Team Coordinator Programs, as well as other District-wide programs and initiatives. 
 
Interpersonal Abilities  
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer practices clear, timely, honest 
communication, promoting openness, mutual respect, and collaborative working relationships; 
helps create a strong performance ethic within the work group; encourages initiative and risk-
taking; and mentors the Business Services Coach and Human Resources Administrator to help 
their teams work effectively, including managing conflict and change. 
 
QualificationsQUALIFICATIONS 
 
Education and Experience: A typical way to have gained the qualifications to perform the duties of 
Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer is:  
through a  

Bbachelor’s degree with major course work in finance, accounting, public or business 
administration, or a closely related field,. Certification as a Certified Public Accountant 
(CPA) is highly desirable. 
 and sSeven years’ increasingly responsible experience in a minimum of one of the 
functional areas managed by this position and exposure to two other functional 

Page 34 of 147



areaspublic financing and accounting; a working knowledge of other functional areas is 
desired.; Tthree years’ experience must have been in a supervisory or management 
capacity.  

 
Knowledge of: Local governmental financial management principles and practices, including 
financial planning, accounting, budgeting, investment, debt financing, purchasing, information 
technology, economic analysis, and forecasting procedures; principles and practices of general, 
fund, cost, governmental accounting, auditing, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) 
and financial control; pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and regulations including 
those related to investments, purchasing; office procedures, methods and equipment including 
computers and applicable software applications such as word processing, spreadsheets, and 
databases; training; safety; and risk management. 
 
Ability to: Manage and direct a comprehensive public agency finance program; prepare and 
administers large and complex budgets; analyze financial data and prepare findings; analyze 
financial and accounting reports; prepare clear and concise administrative and financial reports;  
prepare complex short and long range economic forecasts and analyses; interpret complex 
statutory regulations and requirements; communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in 
writing in English; be skilled at making presentations to the Board of Directors, professional and 
community groups, and other District staff; plan, organize, direct and coordinate the work of 
others; select, supervise, train, and evaluate staff; and interpret and apply applicable federal, 
state, and local policies, laws, and regulations. 
 
The Business Services Manager must have knowledge, skill, and abilities to perform the technical 
duties of this classification.  
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer must have a clear understanding of the 
District's goals and be able to communicate these goals; be able to conceptualize and translate 
concepts into programs; and use excellent judgment in carrying out both technical and 
management responsibilities, addressing issues with integrity, fairness, and flexibility. The 
incumbent must effectively delegate work; identify and mitigate potential problems; learn from 
mistakes and allow subordinates to do the same. 
 
The Business Services Manager/CFO must also have outstanding verbal communication and 
interpersonal skills; understand the interests of others and work collaboratively; promote support 
by staff for his/her decisions; establish and maintain excellent working relationships with District 
staff, the Board of Directors, outside agencies, consultants, and the public; positively influence 
others; be a mentor, coach, and team player; and possess strong written communication skills.  
 
Licenses, Certificates, or Credentials: Must possess a valid Class C California driver's license, have 
and maintain a satisfactory driving record, and be insurable by the District to operate District 
vehicles.  
 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Other Requirements: Must affirm a loyalty oath as a Disaster Service Worker under California 
Government Code Section 3100-3109, complete related training, and return to work as ordered 
in the event of an emergency. Must file a conflict of interest statement. Must possess the 
physical characteristics to perform the critical and important duties of the job.  

Page 35 of 147



 
Disaster Service Worker 
Employees of Union Sanitary District are, by State and Federal law, Disaster Service Workers. In 
the event of a declaration of emergency, and employee may be assigned activities that promote 
the protection of public health and safety or the preservation of lives and property, either at the 
District of within the local, or their own community. 
 
Approved by the Board of Directors: 1997  
Revised: October, 2008 
Position status:  Unclassified, Exempt (Adm/Mgr/Sup) 

Page 36 of 147



Union Sanitary District 

Manager of Business Services/Chief Financial Officer 
Class Description 

 
 
DEFINITION 
 
Reporting to the General Manager and under administrative direction, the Business Services 
Manager/Chief Financial Officer (BS Manager/CFO) manages the Business Services Work Group, 
including the development and implementation of work group and team goals, objectives, and priorities 
for each service area;  and manages the District-wide  administrative functions of finance, budgeting, 
accounting, internal audit, investments, and financial analyses; centralized purchasing, central stores, 
and inventory control; safety; risk management; organizational performance;  training; and information 
technology. Human Resources resides within the Business Services Work Group; however, the Human 
Resources Administrator works directly with the General Manager to strategically manage the District’s 
Human Resources Program. 
 
The BS Manager/CFO works directly with the General Manager, Board of Directors, and Executive Team 
to develop, implement, and manage District-wide goals, objectives and strategic planning as well as  
financing plans set forth by policy, ordinance, and Board approval. 
 
This position manages all accounting and finance functions, including but not limited to financial 
reporting, short- and long-range economic forecasts and analyses, budgets, management of unfunded 
liabilities, audits, investment management, contracts, long-term debt issuance, revenue, cash flow, and 
rate setting.  
 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 
 
Financial Operations  
 

This classification ensures compliance with regulatory and governmental accounting and 
financial reporting standards, including IRS, SCO, GASB, GAAP PERS, ICMA and other legal 
requirements relating to sound financial and administrative operations and consistency of 
financial operations with principles of good stewardship of public funds and the District’s 
strategic objectives.  
Oversees and participates in preparation of the District’s O & M and CIP budgets and forecasting 
of cash flows for the operating budget and capital expenditures and revenues; identifies impacts 
on the current and future rate structure; oversees establishment of financial controls and 
review of expenditures for conformance with approved budgets; and presents budget 
recommendations to the Board of Directors for their approval. 
Serves as the District’s Board-appointed Treasurer; manages the District’s investments and 
portfolio, maximizing income and safety through daily and long-range investment policies; 
administers bond programs and secures tax-exempt and other types of financing; coordinates, 
reviews, evaluates, and recommends improvements to administrative and financial internal 
control systems and procedures to ensure audit compliance; and annually review the District's 
investment policy and recommends revisions to the Board of Directors.  
Ensures conformance with Proposition 218 legal notification for rate changes.  

Page 37 of 147



Directs and participates in the preparation of a variety of records and reports ensuring 
timeliness, accuracy, and compliance with appropriate laws, ordinances, regulations, and 
prudent fiscal transparency.  

 
Information Technology 
 

Oversees implementation of the IT Master Plan. 
Ensures that District employees receive timely and effective assistance through an automated 
Help Desk function; and periodically evaluates the cost effectiveness of existing software to 
meet user needs. 
Oversees and approves IT renewal and replacement expenditures and oversees periodic 
external security audit. 
Ensures that recommendations deemed appropriate by the Executive Team are implemented. 
  

Purchasing and Risk Management  
 

Oversees the District’s general liability, property damage, vehicular physical damage, 
catastrophe insurance, loss recovery, and crime insurance programs.  
Coordinates annual application to CSRMA for liability and property insurance. Periodically 
reviews District insurance coverage. 
Assists the Purchasing Agent to resolve contract law issues or interpretation of the District’s 
purchasing policy with regard to specific situations and reviews recommended changes to the 
District’s Purchasing policy. 
Oversees the administration of claims against the District to ensure timely response, 
appropriate referral to legal counsel, timely communication with the General Manager and 
Board of Directors, and resolution or settlement of claims consistent with the Mission and 
values of the District. 

                                                                   
Organizational Performance 
 

Supports the Organizational Performance Program Manager in the development and 
implementation of quality initiatives at the team, work group, and District levels. 
Works with the OPPM and Executive Team to develop and implement Balanced Scorecard 
District-wide initiatives, goals, measures, and implementation plans. 

 
Management Responsibilities 
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer is a resource to the Board of Directors on 
technical and management issues.  
  
The incumbent participates as a member of the USD Executive Team in District-wide policy and planning 
activities, including development of the District’s Balanced Scorecard and other strategic planning 
activities; provides advice and counsel regarding strategic policy and problem solving issues related to 
the assigned workgroup and the District overall; develops performance measures and implements 
objectives to meet District goals; supports district-wide programs and initiatives; ensures that team 
plans are in alignment with District-wide and work group strategic plans. 
  

Page 38 of 147



The BS Manager/CFO develops and administers the annual budget; manages and carries out technical 
and administrative projects; and occasionally performs the duties of General Manager on an interim 
basis in the General Manager’s absence. 
   
The BS Manager/CFO develops, promotes, supports, and ensures compliance with District-wide, work 
group, and team safety policies, procedures, and safety initiatives and participates in investigations of 
serious accidents. 
 
The BS Manager/CFO establishes appropriate service and staffing levels; monitors and evaluates the 
efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and procedures; and works with staff to allocate 
resources accordingly. 
 
This position oversees and participates in the development and administration of the Business Services 
Work Group; approves the forecast of funds needed for staffing, equipment, materials, and supplies; 
and approves expenditures and implements budgetary adjustments as needed.  
 
This position monitors legal, economic, and business developments in finance and portfolio 
management, public purchasing, information technology, risk management, and human resources; and 
recommends and initiates improved work methods and procedures as appropriate. 
 
The BS Manager/CFO serves as liaison with federal, state, regional, county, city, and other agencies as 
necessary.  
 
Leadership 
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer carries out recruitment and selection, employee 
relations, performance management, and recognition activities for the work group. The BS 
Manager/CFO supervises and mentors the BS Coach and provides general management and mentoring 
(as required) of the Human Resources Administrator in carrying out their responsibilities in each of the 
areas stated above and assists management staff to work effectively with individual employees and 
teams. 
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer may directly supervise one of the BS teams 
depending on their knowledge, skills, and abilities.  
  
The incumbent supports the Business Services Coach in working with the Organizational Performance 
Program Manager (OPPM) and BS teams to apply the principles of total quality to day-to-day operations, 
including the development and application of benchmarking data, other work group metrics, and 
process improvements; and supports the Star Point and Team Coordinator programs, and other District 
programs and initiatives. 
  
Interpersonal Abilities  
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer practices clear, timely, honest communication, 
promoting openness, mutual respect, and collaborative working relationships; helps create a strong 
performance ethic within the work group; encourages initiative and risk-taking; and mentors the 
Business Services Coach and Human Resources Administrator to help their teams work effectively, 
including managing conflict and change. 

Page 39 of 147



  
QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Education and Experience: A typical way to have gained the qualifications to perform the duties of 
Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer is:  
 

Bachelor’s degree with major coursework in finance, accounting, public or business 
administration, or a closely related field. Certification as a Certified Public Accountant (CPA) is 
highly desirable. 
Seven years’ increasingly responsible experience in public financing and accounting; a working 
knowledge of the other functional areas is desired. Three years’ experience must have been in a 
supervisory or management capacity. 

  
Knowledge of: Local governmental financial management principles and practices, including financial 
planning, accounting, budgeting, investments, debt financing, purchasing, information technology, 
economic analysis, and forecasting procedures;  
principles and practices of general, fund, cost, governmental accounting, auditing, Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles (GAAP) and financial control; pertinent federal, state, and local laws, codes, and 
regulations including those related to investments, purchasing; office procedures, methods and 
equipment including computers and applicable software applications such as word processing, 
spreadsheets, and databases; training; safety; and risk management. 
 
Ability to: Manage and direct a comprehensive public agency finance program; prepare and administers 
large and complex budgets; analyze financial data and prepare findings; analyze financial and accounting 
reports; prepare clear and concise administrative and financial reports; prepare complex short and long 
range economic forecasts and analyses; interpret complex statutory regulations and requirements; 
communicate clearly and concisely, both orally and in writing in English; be skilled at making 
presentations to the Board of Directors, professional and community groups, and other District staff; 
plan, organize, direct and coordinate the work of others; select, supervise, train, and evaluate staff; and 
interpret and apply applicable federal, state, and local policies, laws, and regulations.  
 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer must have a clear understanding of the District's 
goals and be able to communicate these goals; be able to conceptualize and translate concepts into 
programs; and use excellent judgment in carrying out both technical and management responsibilities, 
addressing issues with integrity, fairness, and flexibility. The incumbent must effectively delegate work; 
identify and mitigate potential problems; learn from mistakes and allow subordinates to do the same. 
  
The BS Manager/CFO must also have outstanding verbal communication and interpersonal skills; 
understand the interests of others and work collaboratively; promote support by staff for his/her 
decisions; establish and maintain excellent working relationships with District staff, the Board of 
Directors, outside agencies, consultants, and the public; positively influence others; be a mentor, coach, 
and team player; and possess strong written communication skills. 
  
Licenses, Certificates, or Credentials: Must possess a valid Class C California driver's license, have and 
maintain a satisfactory driving record, and be insurable by the District to operate District vehicles. 
 
 
 

Page 40 of 147



ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Other Requirements: Must affirm a loyalty oath as a Disaster Service Worker under California 
Government Code Section 3100-3109, complete related training, and return to work as ordered in the 
event of an emergency. Must file a conflict of interest statement. Must possess the physical 
characteristics to perform the critical and important duties of the job. 
  
Disaster Service Worker 
Employees of Union Sanitary District are, by State and Federal law, Disaster Service Workers.  In the 
event of a declaration of emergency, any employee may be assigned activities that promote the 
protection of public health and safety or the preservation of lives and property, either at the District or 
within the local, or their own community.   
 
Approved by the Board of Directors: 1997 
Revised: October, 2008 
Position status: Unclassified, Exempt (Adm/Mgr/Sup) 

Page 41 of 147



Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

DATE: May 5, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 9 - Meeting of May 11, 2015 
 SELECT BOARD MEMBERS TO REPRESENT USD ON EXTERNAL COMMITTEES 

FOR FY16 
  
Recommendation 
 
Select Board Members to serve the FY16 term as USD representatives on the East Bay 
Dischargers Authority (EBDA) Commission, Alameda County Chapter of California Special 
District Association (CSDA), and the Southern Alameda County Geographic Information System 
(SACGIS) Joint Powers Authority. 
 
Background 
 
Policy No. 3070.2 calls for the Board to select representatives and alternates for three External 
Committees no later than the first meeting in June so that representatives may be seated for 
the first meeting of the new fiscal year.  EBDA Commissioners often make plans early for 
selection of officers for the following year. 
 
Currently, the representatives and alternates for the external committees are: 
 
 Organization    Representative  Alternate 
 EBDA Commission   Tom Handley   Manny Fernandez 
 CSDA (Alameda County)  Pat Kite   Manny Fernandez 
 SACGIS     Jennifer Toy   Anjali Lathi  
 

Page 42 of 147



Policy calls for members to make their wishes known to the Board and for the Board to vote for 
each representative position and alternate position by secret ballot.  Past practice has been to 
waive the secret ballot and make selections by voice vote, an option provided within the policy.   
 
Internal committee assignments for FY 16 will be announced in July following the election of 
officers. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 43 of 147



 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Paul R. Eldredge 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

DATE:  May 2, 2015 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors – Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM:  Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager/District Engineer 
  David M. O’Hara, Legal Counsel 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 – Meeting of May 11, 2015 

RESOLUTION NO. ___,   AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF CONTRACT WITH NEW LEGAL 
COUNSEL 

 
Recommendation: 
 
Staff recommend the Board of Directors approve this Resolution. 
 
Background: 
 
In preparation for Mr. O’Hara’s 2015 retirement, a succession plan was developed in consultation with 
the Board of Directors in the fall of 2014. As part of that plan, and in line with the schedule, a Request 
for Proposals (RFP) was developed.  The RFP was distributed in January 2015 to 11 law firms having 
experience with public agency law, particularly sanitation agencies. Eight very well qualified law firms 
submitted detailed proposals. Mr. Eldredge (USD General Manager), Mr. O’Hara (USD existing legal 
Counsel), and Mr. Ghossain (USD Technical Services Work Group Manager) narrowed the list to three 
finalists.  Two representatives from each firm were interviewed by the Board on April 21, 2015.  Burke, 
Williams & Sorensen, LLP of Oakland was unanimously selected, with Karen W. Murphy to act as 
primary legal counsel and Leah Castella as assistant legal counsel.  A contract for the Burke, Williams & 
Sorensen firm has been negotiated and is attached to this staff report for reference.   
 
Mr. O’Hara has indicated he will be available until the end of the year to provide a comprehensive 
opportunity for transfer of knowledge, and a thorough examination of the files which will be available 
to the new legal counsel. In conjunction with the knowledge transfer, new legal counsel will be provided 
a history of the District and a review of past and present facilities by Mr. O’Hara and Mr. Eldredge. 
 
Some of the more notable attributes in the proposed contract presented for Board consideration 
include the following: 

Page 44 of 147



 
Term: 1 year initial term with one year extensions thereafter. 
Compensation: the contract, consistent with the proposal, includes a billing rate of $275 per 
hour for Basic Services and $315 per hour for additional services (i.e. Litigation). The 
compensation rates will be reviewed in January of odd numbered years and shall not be greater 
than the CPI-W the previous year for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose area. 
Travel time for Basic Services will not be billable. 
The District can cancel the contract at any time by written notice. Burke can cancel the contract 
at any time upon 60 days prior written notice. 
Customary insurance and indemnification provisions that have been reviewed and approved by 
Mr. O’Hara. 
Attorneys will attend the Annual CASA meetings at their expense.  

 
 

Attachments 
Resolution 
Proposed Contract 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  
 
 

Page 45 of 147



RESOLUTION NO. ______

AUTHORIZE EXECUTION OF CONTRACT WITH                                                 
BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSEN LLP FOR LEGAL COUNSEL SERVICES

WHEREAS, David O’Hara has provided legal services to Union Sanitary District for 
over 35 years; and

WHEREAS, in preparation for Mr. O’Hara’s 2015 retirement, a succession plan was 
developed in consultation with the Board of Directors in the fall of 2014; and

WHEREAS, a Request for Proposals for legal counsel services was developed and 
distributed in January 2015 to 11 law firms having experience with public agency law; and

WHEREAS, eight very well qualified law firms submitted detailed proposals; and

WHEREAS, General Manager Eldredge, Mr. O’Hara, and Technical Services 
Manager Ghossain reviewed the proposals and selected three firms to be interviewed; and

WHEREAS, two representatives from each firm were interviewed by the Board on 
April 21, 2015; and

WHEREAS, Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP of Oakland was unanimously 
selected, with Karen W. Murphy to act as primary legal counsel and Leah Castella as 
assistant legal counsel; and

WHEREAS, a contract for the Burke, Williams & Sorensen firm has been negotiated 
and presented to the Board for consideration.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Union 
Sanitary District that the General Manager is hereby authorized to execute a contract with 
Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP for legal counsel services.   

Page 46 of 147



AGREEMENT FOR GENERAL COUNSEL SERVICES 
 

This Agreement for General Counsel Services (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as 
of the _____ day of ___________, 2015, by and between the Union Sanitary District, an 
independent special district of the State of California (“District”) and Burke, Williams & 
Sorensen, LLP, a California limited liability partnership (“Burke”) (collectively, the “Parties”). 

RECITALS 

A. District requires the professional legal services of attorneys to serve as the 
District’s General Counsel. 

B. Burke has the necessary experience and history in providing professional legal 
services and advice related to areas of law referenced above and is able and willing to provide 
General Counsel services to the District. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of these recitals and the mutual covenants 
contained herein, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. Legal Services. 

1.1 Burke’s duties shall be that of General Counsel to the District, and 
Burke shall perform any and all basic General Counsel duties and functions entrusted to it by 
the District including, without limitation, those services described in Exhibit A (“Services”).  In 
performing the Services, Burke’s attorneys shall be available for advice or consultation as 
needed by phone or email, with follow-up written advice as requested by District.  Burke shall 
not prepare any writing on District stationary without the consent of the District and shall 
exercise good faith efforts to obtain consent of the General Manager prior to engaging with the 
media regarding any events, persons or policies of the District, or shall immediately notify the 
General Manager after any such engagement.  Further, Burke shall keep informed of the 
operation, management, personnel and projects of the District, as well as the industry of 
sanitary agencies by attending CASA conferences, including the annual conferences and 
attorney sessions. 

1.2 Karen W. Murphy shall be designated the General Counsel and J. 
Leah Castella shall be designated the Assistant General Counsel and they will be the coordinator 
of services provided to the District with other attorneys of the firm as necessary. 

1.3 District and its members recognize that the firm of Burke provides 
legal representation to public entities throughout California.  The Services will not include 
matters in which Burke has a conflict of interest that precludes Burke from representing the 
District, members of the District Board, or officers or employees of District.  If Burke has a 
conflict of interest or lacks expertise to handle a particular assignment, Burke shall provide the 
District with a recommendation to hire outside counsel.  District also agrees to exercise 
reasonable discretion in providing waivers for any potential or perceived conflicts that might 

OAK #4852-3671-0179 v3  1
Page 47 of 147



arise out of representation of Burke’s other clients, which representation does not directly 
involve Burke’s representation of District. 

2. Standard of Performance.  While performing the Services, Burke will 
exercise the reasonable professional care and skill customarily exercised by reputable members 
of the California State Bar practicing in the Metropolitan Northern California Area, and will use 
reasonable diligence and best judgment while exercising its professional skill and expertise. 

3. Term.  Unless earlier terminated or extended, the term of this Agreement 
will be for a period of one year with automatic annual extensions. 

4. Compensation.  In consideration for the rendition of the Services, District 
shall compensate Burke as follows: 

4.1 For basic General Counsel services which shall include attendance 
at two District Board meetings per month, committee meetings as requested, rendition of 
routine legal advice, preparation of ordinances, resolutions, contracts and other standard legal 
documents, and preparation of formal written opinions, and legal advice provided with respect 
to local government, enterprise funds, real estate matters, and construction matters (“Basic 
Services”), District shall pay to Burke on an hourly basis $275 per hour for Basic Services.  
Compensation rates to be reviewed in January of odd numbered years for adjustment but shall 
not be greater than the Consumer Price Index (CPI-W) for the San Francisco-Oakland-San Jose 
area for the previous year. 

4.2 For other additional services rendered in connection with legal 
advice provided on non-routine matters, including but not limited to, personnel matters, 
specialized construction issues (such as complex bid disputes or protests), preparation, 
prosecution and defense of litigation and/or adjudicative or investigative proceedings and 
complex transactional matters, District shall pay to Burke on an hourly basis $315 per hour.  
Prior to applying this rate to any matter covered by this paragraph, Burke shall consult with the 
General Manager. 

4.3 Travel time will not be compensated for Basic Services or those 
legal services specified in Section 4.1 herein.

5. Payment for Services. 

5.1 Burke shall bill the District on a monthly basis.  Each bill shall 
indicate the date of the work done, the work that was accomplished, the attorney or paralegal 
that performed the work, and the fee for the work.  To each bill, Burke shall add an 
administrative charge of 4% of legal fees in lieu of separately itemizing general overhead costs, 
which are generally chargeable to a client, including long distance telephone service, facsimile 
charges, regular postage, and routine copying of documents.  Burke shall regularly monitor its 
actual administrative expenses to ensure that the administrative charge is a fair and reasonable 
approximation of actual expenses. 

OAK #4852-3671-0179 v3  2 
Page 48 of 147



5.2 The following out-of-pocket expenses will be separately itemized 
and included in bills to the District:  (1) extraordinary operating expenses, including items such 
as messenger services, overnight mail charges, and extraordinary copying; (2) necessary travel 
and subsistence expenses, with the exception of CASA and other industry related sessions or 
conferences; (3) court costs, including filing fees, witness fees, and deposition and discovery 
costs not paid directly by the District. 

5.3 The District shall review and approve Burke’s monthly statements 
and pay Burke for services rendered and expenses incurred at the rates and in the amounts 
provided in this Agreement on a monthly basis in accordance with the approved monthly 
statements. 

6. General Compliance with Laws.  Burke will keep informed of federal, 
state and local laws and ordinances and regulations which in any manner affect Burke, or in any 
way affect the performance of the Services by Burke.  Burke will at all times observe and 
comply with these laws, ordinances, and regulations and will be responsible for the compliance 
of the Services with all applicable laws, ordinances and regulations. 

7. Status of Burke.  Burke will perform the Services in Burke’s own way as an 
independent contractor and in pursuit of Burke’s independent calling, and not as an employee 
of District.  The persons used by Burke to provide the Services under this Agreement will not be 
considered employees of District for any purposes.  The payment made to Burke pursuant to 
the Agreement will be the full and complete compensation to which Burke is entitled.  District 
will not make any federal or state tax withholdings on behalf of Burke or its agents, employees 
or subcontractors.  District will not be required to pay any Workers’ Compensation insurance or 
unemployment contributions on behalf of Burke or its employees or subcontractors. 

8. Indemnification.  Burke will indemnify and hold harmless District and its 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against all claims, damages, losses and 
expenses including attorney fees arising out of the performance of the Services to the extent 
they are caused by the willful misconduct or negligent act or omission of Burke, any 
subcontractor, anyone employed by any of them or anyone for whose acts any of them may be 
liable. 

9. Insurance.  Burke will obtain and maintain for the duration of the 
Agreement and any and all amendments, insurance against claims for injuries to persons or 
damage to property which may arise out of or in connection with performance of the Services 
by Burke or Burke’s agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.  The insurance will 
be obtained from an insurance carrier admitted and authorized to do business in the State of 
California.  The insurance carrier is required to have a current Best’s Key Rating of not less than 
“A:VII.” 

9.1 Coverages and Limits.  Burke will maintain the types of coverages 
and minimum limits indicated below, unless General Manager approves a lower amount.  These 
minimum amounts of coverage will not constitute any limitations or cap on Burke’s 

OAK #4852-3671-0179 v3  3 
Page 49 of 147



indemnification obligations under this Agreement.  District, its officers, agents, volunteers and 
employees make no representation that the limits of the insurance specified to be carried by 
Burke pursuant to this Agreement are adequate to protect Burke.  If Burke believes that any 
required insurance coverage is inadequate, Burke will obtain such additional insurance 
coverage, as Burke deems adequate, at Burke’s sole expense. 

9.1.1 Commercial General Liability Insurance.  $1,000,000 
combined single-limit per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage.  If 
the submitted policies contain aggregate limits, general aggregate limits will apply separately to 
the work under this Agreement or the general aggregate will be twice the required per 
occurrence limit. 

9.1.2 Automobile Liability.  $1,000,000 combined single-limit per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

9.1.3 Workers’ Compensation and Employer’s Liability.  
Workers’ Compensation limits as required by the California Labor Code and Employer’s Liability 
limits of $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury. 

9.1.4 Professional Liability.  Errors and omissions liability 
appropriate to Burke’s profession with limits of not less than $1,000,000 per claim. 

9.2 Additional Provisions.  Burke will ensure that the policies of 
insurance required under this Agreement contain, or are endorsed to contain, the following 
provisions: 

9.2.1 For Commercial General Liability Insurance and 
Automobile Liability Insurance, District and its officers, agents, volunteers and employees will 
be named as additional insureds. 

9.2.2 Burke will obtain occurrence coverage, excluding 
Professional Liability, which will be written as claims-made coverage. 

9.2.3 This insurance will be in force during the life of the 
Agreement and any extensions of it and will not be canceled without thirty (30) days prior 
written notice to District sent pursuant to the notice provisions of this Agreement. 

9.3 Providing Certificates of Insurance and Endorsements.  Prior to 
District’s execution of this Agreement, Burke will furnish certificates of insurance and 
endorsements to District. 

9.4 Failure to Maintain Coverage.  If Burke fails to maintain any of 
these insurance coverages, then District will have the option to declare Burke in breach, or may 
purchase replacement insurance or pay the premiums that are due on existing policies in order 
to maintain the required coverages.  Burke is responsible for any payments made by District to 

OAK #4852-3671-0179 v3  4 
Page 50 of 147



obtain or maintain insurance and District may collect these payments from Burke or deduct the 
amount paid from any sums due Burke under this Agreement. 

9.5 Primary Coverage.  For any claims related to the Services and this 
Agreement, Burke’s insurance coverage will be the primary insurance with respect to District 
and its officers, agents, volunteers and employees.  Any insurance or self-insurance maintained 
by District, for itself or its officers, agents, volunteers and employees, will be in excess of 
Burke’s insurance and not contributory with it. 

9.6 Reduction in Coverage/Material Changes.  Burke will notify 
District thirty (30) days prior to any reduction in any of the insurance coverage required 
pursuant to this Agreement or any material changes to the respective insurance policies. 

10. Maintenance of Records.  Burke will maintain complete and accurate 
records with respect to costs incurred under this Agreement.  All such records will be clearly 
identifiable.  Burke will allow a representative of District during normal business hours to 
examine, audit, and make transcripts or copies of such records and any other such documents 
created pursuant to this Agreement.  Burke will allow inspection of all work, data, documents, 
proceedings, and activities related to the Agreement for a period of three (3) years from the 
date of final payment under this Agreement. 

11. Ownership of Documents.  Upon termination of this Agreement, all 
reports, plans, documents, records, and data or certified copies of same prepared by Burke 
pursuant to this Agreement shall become the property of District, excluding Burke’s internal 
accounting records and other documents not reasonably necessary to District’s representation, 
subject to Burke’s right to make copies of any files withdrawn by District.  Once a matter is 
concluded, Burke will close the file and District will receive notice of any District materials that 
remain in Burke’s possession.  District will be invited to retrieve these District materials within a 
reasonable time as set forth in the notice or District may direct Burke to forward the District 
materials to District at District’s expense.  If District does not retrieve the materials or request 
that they be forwarded, District authorizes Burke to destroy the materials in accordance with 
applicable rules of professional conduct and document retention.  Under Burke’s document 
retention policy, Burke would normally destroy files five (5) years after a matter is closed, 
unless other arrangements are made with District.  All District-supplied materials and all 
attorney end product (referred to generally as “District material”) are the property of District.  
Attorney end product includes, for example, finalized contracts, pleadings, and trust 
documents.  Attorney work product is the property of Burke.  Attorney work product includes, 
for example, drafts, notes, internal memoranda and electronic files, and attorney 
representation and administration materials, including attorney-District correspondence and 
conflicts materials. 

OAK #4852-3671-0179 v3  5 
Page 51 of 147



12. Notices.  The name of the persons who are authorized to give written 
notices or to receive written notice on behalf of District and on behalf of Burke under this 
Agreement are: 

For District: For Burke: 

Union Sanitary District Burke, Williams & Sorensen, LLP 
Attn: General Manager Attn: Karen W. Murphy 
5072 Benson Road 1901 Harrison St., 9th Floor 
Union District, CA 94587 Oakland, CA 94612 
(510) 477-7503 (510) 273-8780 

Except as otherwise stated, all notices to be provided or that may be provided 
under this Agreement must be in writing and delivered by regular or certified mail.  Each party 
will notify the other immediately of any changes of address that would require any notice or 
delivery to be directed to another address. 

13. Termination of Services. 

13.1 District may terminate Services at any time by written notice.  
After receiving such notice, Burke will cease providing the Services.  Burke will cooperate with 
District in the orderly transfer of all related files and records to District’s new counsel. 

13.2 Burke may terminate the Services at any time upon sixty (60) days 
prior written notice.  If Burke terminates the Services, District agrees to execute a substitution 
of attorneys promptly and otherwise cooperate in effecting that termination. 

13.3 Termination of the Services, whether by District or by Burke, will 
not relieve the obligation to pay for the Services rendered and costs incurred before the 
Services formally ceased. 

14. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement embodies the entire Agreement and 
understanding between the Parties relating to the subject matter of it.  In case of conflict, the 
terms of this Agreement supersede any and all prior written or oral agreement, order or 
understanding.  Neither this Agreement nor any of its provisions may be amended, modified, 
waived or discharged except in writing signed by both Parties. 

[signatures follow on next page] 

 

OAK #4852-3671-0179 v3  6
Page 52 of 147



 IN WITNESS HEREOF, the Parties hereby execute this Agreement as of the date set forth 
above. 

 

BURKE: 

BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSEN, LLP 

By:   
 John J. Welsh, Managing Partner 

 

DISTRICT: 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, an Independent 
Special District of the State of California 

By:   
 Manny Fernandez, President, Board of 
 Directors 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By:   
 David M. O'Hara, Attorney 
 
 

 

OAK #4852-3671-0179 v3  7
Page 53 of 147



EXHIBIT A 
 

SERVICES 

Attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and committee meetings as requested to, 
among other things, explain legal requirements and disclosure needs where necessary 

Review agenda materials of the Board of Directors and prepare agenda material and 
memoranda as necessary 

Participate in meetings at the District offices or other locations as requested 

Consult with Special Legal Counsel regarding employment issues or other issues 
requiring Special Counsel services 

Assist in drafting agreements, ordinances, resolutions, policies and other legal 
documents, including review of District’s template agreements and updates as 
requested 

Review District’s purchasing policies for conformance with law and regulations as 
requested and provide recommendations if necessary 

Keep informed of statutes, regulations, case decisions or other legal matters that affect 
the District and provide such information to District 

Provide service consistent with the District’s adopted policies and standards for 
providing excellent customer service and transparency in governance 

OAK #4852-3671-0179 v3 Exhibit A
Page 54 of 147



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: May 4, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager / District Engineer
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach
Chris Pachmayer, Associate Engineer
Derek Chiu, Assistant Engineer

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 - Meeting of May 11, 2015
Resolution No. ______, Accept the Construction of the Primary 
Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project from D.W. Nicholson 
Corporation and Authorize the Attorney for the District to Record a 
Notice of Completion

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board accept the construction of the Primary Digester No. 5 
Rehabilitation Project from D.W. Nicholson Corporation by resolution, and authorize the 
Attorney for the District to record a Notice of Completion at the Alameda County 
Recorder’s Office.

Background

Primary Digester No. 5 was originally constructed during the 1985 plant upgrade 
project.  In June 2014, Primary Digester No. 5 was taken out of service and cleaned as 
part of the District’s ongoing maintenance program.  A condition assessment of the 
digester and its appurtenances was conducted by V&A Consulting Engineers, Inc. 
(V&A) after the digester was cleaned.  V&A’s assessment revealed that the interior 
epoxy coating of the digester’s dome and the polyurethane foam insulation on the 
exterior of the dome were compromised and in need of replacement. The assessment 
also showed some areas of the dome’s steel side skirt were corroded and needed 
reinforcement.  

Page 55 of 147



Agenda Item No. 11
Meeting of May 11, 2015
Page 2 

On July 28, 2014, the Board awarded the construction contract for the Primary Digester 
No. 5 Rehabilitation Project (Project) in the amount of $779,600 to D.W. Nicholson 
Corporation (DWN). The purpose of the Project was to inspect and repair Primary 
Digester No. 5’s steel dome and side skirt, replace the existing foam insulation on the 
dome, and recoat the dome and various digester appurtenances.   

Water Works Engineers completed the design of the Project in July 2014. The scope of 
work for the Project consisted of the following:

 Lifting the Primary Digester No. 5 steel dome to inspect and repair the exterior 
side of the dome’s steel side skirt. 
Repairing the existing dome steel and tank concrete.
Replacing all foam insulation on the exterior of the digester dome.
Blasting and recoating the interior of the digester dome.
Blasting and recoating the 30-inch diameter suction line, the 6-inch diameter 
sludge sample lines, and the 20-inch diameter discharge nozzles located inside
the digester.
Pressure washing the interior walls of the digester tank to remove struvite 
deposits. Struvite is a crystalline material that forms from magnesium,
ammonium, and phosphate present in wastewater under a high pH environment.

Construction Contract

Staff issued the Notice to Proceed to DWN on August 28, 2014 with a scheduled 
completion date of December 25, 2014. DWN substantially completed the Project on 
February 27, 2015. The delay in substantial completion is primarily attributed to the 
repairs to the steel dome side skirt that were more extensive than anticipated. Overall, 
Staff granted time extensions of sixty-four (64) calendar days to account for contractor 
delays.

Change Order Summary

The Project construction included eleven (11) change orders at a total cost of $88,862,
which is approximately 11% of the original contract amount. A summary of the change 
orders is shown in Table 1:

Page 56 of 147



Agenda Item No. 11
Meeting of May 11, 2015
Page 3 

Table 1
Change Order Summary

No. Description Amount
1 Assembly of Existing Structural Lifting Devices $3,376
2 Temporary Removal of Light Fixture and Conduits $3,163
3 Temporary Lighting of the West Access Road $2,604
4 Fabricate Thirty-Three New Digester Dome Anchors $18,281
5 Replacement of Additional Piping under the Overflow Box $4,000
6 Credit for Coating of Manway Covers and for the Deletion of 

New Viewport Nozzle
($3,109)

7 Repair of Digester Steel Dome and Side Skirt $54,498
8 Install Locknuts for Digester Dome Walkways $2,331
9 Repair of Walkway Supports on the Digester Dome $769
10 Minor Hole Repair in Digester Dome near the Center Water Seal $2,949
11 Time Extension $0

Total $88,862

Two of the more significant change orders are described in detail below:

Change Order No. 4 was for the fabrication of thirty-three (33) new dome anchors. The 
existing dome anchors were originally required to be removed, cleaned, and recoated 
as part of the Project. During construction, it was discovered that all of the dome 
anchors were significantly corroded and bonded to the tube steel supports of the dome. 
In order to remove the dome anchors, the contractor was forced to cut them off and thus 
preventing their reuse. During design, staff estimated that up to five (5) dome anchors 
may need replacement and it was included as a separate bid item.  The contractor’s 
original bid price was $900 per dome anchor.  Due to the increased number of dome 
anchors, Staff was able to negotiate a lower unit price of $690 per anchor.  

Change Order No. 7 was for the repair of the steel dome and side skirt of Primary 
Digester No. 5. During construction and after the steel dome was lifted, V&A performed 
a condition assessment of the exposed side skirt of the steel dome and the concrete 
wall concealed by the side skirt. Significant corrosion was discovered around the 
perimeter of the dome and on the side skirt. In some locations holes were discovered in 
the side skirt. DWN welded two bands of steel plate around the entire skirt to repair the 
corrosion damage. During design, staff had anticipated that some spot repairs would be 
needed after V&A completed their condition assessment. Staff had allocated $30,000 in 
bid allowances to account for the repair of the steel dome, side skirt, and concrete tank 
wall. After taking into account the allowances, the net cost of Change Order No. 7 was 
$54,498. Change Order No. 7 took place during the major rain storms in December 
2014 which complicated the repair and extended the time to complete the work.

Page 57 of 147



Agenda Item No. 11
Meeting of May 11, 2015
Page 4 

The District has assumed beneficial occupancy of Primary Digester No. 5 and the 
digester was placed back into operation on March 5, 2015. The Project punchlist was 
issued on March 5, 2015 to DWN and all field punchlist work has been successfully 
completed. A couple of administrative punchlist items remain and staff anticipates their 
completion by mid-May 2015.

Staff recommends the Board accept the construction of the Primary Digester No. 5 
Rehabilitation Project from D.W. Nicholson Corporation by resolution, and authorize the 
Attorney for the District to record a Notice of Completion with the Alameda County 
Recorder’s Office.

PRE/SEG/RC/CP/DC:ks 

Attachments: Resolution
Notice of Completion
Figure 1 – Site Map
Figure 2 – Plan and Section Views
Photos

  

Page 58 of 147



RESOLUTION NO. _____ 

ACCEPT THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE
PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 5 REHABILITATION PROJECT

LOCATED IN UNION CITY, CALIFORNIA

RESOLVED:  That the Board of Directors of the UNION SANITARY 
DISTRICT hereby accepts the Primary Digester No. 5 Rehabilitation Project from 
D.W. Nicholson Corporation, effective May 11, 2015; and be it

FURTHER RESOLVED:  That the attorney for the District is authorized to 
record a “Notice of Completion” for the project.

On motion duly made and seconded, this resolution was adopted by the 
following vote on May 11, 2015: 

AYES:

NOES:

ABSENT:

ABSTAIN:

MANNY FERNANDEZ
President, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District 

Attest:

TOM HANDLEY
Secretary, Board of Directors
Union Sanitary District

Page 59 of 147



RECORDING REQUESTED BY
AND WHEN RECORDED
RETURN TO:

DAVID M. O’HARA
Attorney at Law
975 Centennial Drive
Brentwood, CA 94513

NO RECORDING FEE – PER GOVERNMENT CODE SECTIONS 6103 & 27283

NOTICE OF COMPLETION

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN BY UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, Alameda County, California, 
that the work hereinafter described, the contract for the construction of which was entered into 
on August 2, 2014, by said District and D.W. NICHOLSON CORPORATION 24747 Clawiter 
Road, Hayward, CA, 94545 Contractor for the Project, “PRIMARY DIGESTER NO. 5
REHABILITATION PROJECT”, was substantially completed on February 27, 2015 and 
accepted by said District on May 11, 2015. 

The name and address of the owner is UNION SANITARY DISTRICT, at 5072 Benson Road, 
Union City, CA 94587.

The estate or interest of the owner is:  FEE SIMPLE ABSOLUTE.

The description of the site where said work was performed and completed is Union Sanitary 
District’s Wastewater Treatment Plant, located at 5072 Benson Road, Union City, CA 94587, 
County of Alameda, State of California. 

The undersigned declares under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.

Executed on ____________________________ at UNION CITY, CALIFORNIA.

_________________________
DAVID M. O’HARA,
Agent of UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

Page 60 of 147



Pr
im

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r #
4

Pr
im

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r #
5

Pa
in

t S
ho

p

Pr
im

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r #
3

Pr
im

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r #
2

Pr
im

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r #
1

H
ea

t/M
ix

 B
ld

g 
#3

H
ea

t/M
ix

 B
ld

g 
#1

IN
K

A
/C

O
G

EN
 G

as
 F

ilt
ra

tio
n

Th
ic

ke
ne

r #
1

Th
ic

ke
ne

r #
2

H
ea

t/M
ix

 B
ld

g 
#2

Sc
ru

bb
er

 S
tr

uc
tu

re

Su
rg

e 
To

w
er

Sl
ud

ge
 T

ra
ns

fe
r T

an
k

C
on

cr
et

e 
Th

ru
st

 W
al

l

³
P

ag
e 

61
 o

f 1
47

F
i
g
u
r
e
N
o
.
1

Pr
im

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r #
5



 
 

P
ag

e 
62

 o
f 1

47

D
ig

es
te

rd
om

e
sk

irt
ex

te
nd

s
2'

-6
"b

el
ow

to
p

of
di

ge
st

er
ta

nk
w

al
l

70
-fo

ot
D

ia
m

et
er

D
om

e



S
te

el
 D

om
e 

S
id

e 
S

ki
rt 

– 
N

ot
e 

th
e 

ho
le

s 
pr

es
en

t d
ue

 to
 c

or
ro

si
on

 d
am

ag
e.

 S
im

ila
r d

am
ag

e 
is

 a
ls

o 
pr

es
en

t i
n 

ot
he

r 
lo

ca
tio

ns
 o

f t
he

 s
id

e 
sk

irt
.

P
ag

e 
63

 o
f 1

47



S
te

el
 D

om
e 

S
id

e 
S

ki
rt 

– 
V

ie
w

 fr
om

 in
si

de
 th

e 
di

ge
st

er
 a

nd
 n

ot
e 

th
e 

da
yl

ig
ht

 c
om

in
g 

th
ro

ug
h 

va
rio

us
 h

ol
es

 p
re

se
nt

 d
ue

 to
 

co
rro

si
on

 d
am

ag
e.

P
ag

e 
64

 o
f 1

47



S
te

el
 D

om
e 

S
id

e 
S

ki
rt 

R
ep

ai
r

P
ag

e 
65

 o
f 1

47



S
tru

vi
te

 o
n 

th
e 

S
ur

fa
ce

 o
f t

he
 C

en
te

r C
ol

um
n 

in
si

de
 D

ig
es

te
r 5

 –
 C

en
te

r c
ol

um
n 

w
as

 c
le

an
ed

 a
nd

 re
co

at
ed

P
ag

e 
66

 o
f 1

47



P
rim

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r N
o.

 5
 –

 R
ec

oa
te

d 
D

om
e 

In
te

rio
r

P
ag

e 
67

 o
f 1

47



P
rim

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

r N
o.

 5
 - 

E
xi

st
in

g 
Fo

am
 In

su
la

tio
n 

S
ys

te
m

P
ag

e 
68

 o
f 1

47



P
rim

ar
y 

D
ig

es
te

rN
o.

 5
 - 

C
om

pl
et

ed
 N

ew
 F

oa
m

 In
su

la
tio

n 
S

ys
te

m

P
ag

e 
69

 o
f 1

47



Directors
Manny Fernandez
Tom Handley
Pat Kite
Anjali Lathi
Jennifer Toy
  
Officers
Paul R. Eldredge
General Manager/
District Engineer
  
David M. O’Hara
Attorney

DATE: May 4, 2015

MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District

FROM: Paul R. Eldredge, General Manager
Sami E. Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services
Rollie Arbolante, Customer Service Team Coach

SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 12 - Meeting of May 11, 2015
Authorize the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 6 with 
West Yost Associates for the Design of the Newark Backyard 
Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 3

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order 
No. 6 with West Yost Associates in the amount of $159,760 for the design of the 
Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project - Phase 3. 

Funds for the Project are expected to be budgeted for in the FY’16 Capacity and 
Renewal/Replacement Funds. 

Background

The purpose of the Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project is to improve 
the existing gravity sewer system within the residential neighborhood located northerly 
of the intersection of Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street in the city of Newark.  A map of 
the project is attached.  The existing sewers have very flat slopes and require frequent 
and expensive maintenance of the sewers.  The sewers are also located in backyard 
easements and are very difficult to access for maintenance and inspection.  The goal of 
the project is to relocate the existing backyard sewer mains and laterals to the public 
streets fronting the homes.

Phase 1 of the project included the relocation of 33 sewer laterals from the backyard of 
homes on Dairy Avenue and Cherry Street in the project area. West Yost and 

Page 70 of 147



Agenda Item No. 12
Meeting of May 11, 2015
Page 2 

Associates completed the design of Phase 1 and the Board awarded the construction 
contract to Ranger Pipelines, Inc. on April 28, 2014.  Construction was completed in
August 2014.

Phase 2 of the project will include the construction of approximately 3,800 feet of new 
sewer mains to replace existing sewer mains located in backyard easements; and 
include the relocation of approximately 95 sewer laterals from the backyard to the public
street fronting the homes. The Board awarded the construction contract for Phase 2 to 
Ranger Pipelines, Inc. on April 13, 2015.  Construction is about to begin on the project 
and it is estimated to be complete in early October 2015.

The final phase of the project, Phase 3, will complete the relocation of backyard sewer 
mains and sewer laterals for the neighborhood.  The design of Phase 3 will include the 
construction of approximately 3,000 feet of new sewer mains located in backyard 
easements; and include the relocation of approximately 80 sewer laterals from the 
backyard to the public street fronting the homes.  

Task Order No. 6

The scope of services for Task Order No. 6 includes: 

Project Management such as day-to-day administration, progress meetings and 
technical reviews
Public Outreach including contact with property owners, backyard investigations, 
development of individual lateral plans for each property, and one public meeting
early in design
Drafting of legal descriptions and plats for easements to be quitclaimed
Design of approximately 3,000 feet of new 8-inch sewer mains and 80 relocated 
sewer laterals
Bid Support Services

Task Description Amount
1 Project Management $ 10,696
2 Public Outreach $ 47,793
3 Surveying $ 17,099
4 Utility Coordination $ 11,600
5 Design $ 64,600
6 Bid Support Services $ 7,972

Total $ 159,760

The preliminary construction cost estimate for Phase 3 is $2.5 million. The total cost of
Task Order No. 6 represents 6.4% of the construction cost estimate.  The expected
percentage for a project of this size is 6-8%.  

Page 71 of 147



Agenda Item No. 12
Meeting of May 11, 2015
Page 3 

A summary of West Yost Associates’ Task Orders to the Agreement is as follows:

TASK ORDER DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

1 Preliminary design and evaluation services for Newark 
Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project $52,772

2 Final design services for Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer 
Relocation Project – Phase 1 $76,352

3 Engineering services during construction of Newark Backyard 
Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 1 $15,262

4 Final design services for Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer 
Relocation Project – Phase 2

$230,239

5 Engineering services during construction of Newark Backyard 
Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project – Phase 2

$32,908

6 Final design services for Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer 
Relocation Project – Phase 3

$159,760

Total $567,293

Design of the Newark Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project - Phase 3 is scheduled for 
completion in February 2016, with construction to follow in Spring 2016. 

Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order 
No. 6 with West Yost Associates in the amount of $ 159,760 for the design of the 
Newark Backyard Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project - Phase 3. 

PRE/SEG/RA:ks 

Attachments: Exhibit A - Project Map
Task Order No. 6 

Page 72 of 147





NEWARK BACKYARD SANITARY SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT – PHASE 3  

(USD Project No. 800-____) 

TASK ORDER NO. 6 
TO

AGREEMENT DATED JULY 18, 2012
BETWEEN UNION SANITARY DISTRICT AND

WEST YOST ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR  
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

_________________________________________

1. PURPOSE

The purpose of Task Order No. 6 is to authorize the final design of Phase 3 of the Newark Backyard 
Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project (Project).  Phase 3 of the Project will relocate existing backyard 
sewer mains and sewer laterals for approximately 80 homes and connect them to new sewer mains 
on Bonnie Street, Noel Avenue, Wilma Avenue, Zulmida Avenue, and Christine Court as shown on 
Exhibit A.  The new sewer mains consist of approximately 3,075 linear feet of 8-inch diameter 
sewer installed by open-cut construction.  

The scope of work includes project management, public outreach, supplemental surveying, 
mapping, utility coordination, design, and bid support services. 

2. SCOPE OF SERVICES

The task numbers in this Scope of Services relate directly to the costs presented in Item 5, Payment 
to the Engineer, and the schedule presented in Item 6, Time of Completion. Deliverables to be 
received by Union Sanitary District (District) are described in Item 3, Deliverables. Optional tasks 
shown shall not be performed without authorization from the District.

Task 1.  Project Management

This task will include project management activities, including day-to-day administration, progress 
meetings and technical reviews.

Subtask 1.01—Project Administration. Monitor progress of individual tasks and coordinate 
completion of work products.  Monitor task budgets and project schedule.  Schedule changes, if 
required, will be provided.

Subtask 1.02—Progress Meetings. Attend a project kick-off meeting and up to two progress 
meetings (during the design phase) with District staff to discuss and review progress and significant 
action items.  Engineer will prepare and submit meeting agendas and minutes.

Subtask 1.03—Technical Reviews. Technical reviews shall be conducted by the Principal-in-
Charge, Project Manager, and a senior staff member not directly involved in the project.

5/4/2015 1 Task Order No.6 
TO6_Newark Phase 3__Final Union Sanitary District
Page 74 of 147



Task 2.  Public Outreach
This task includes services for public outreach support.

Subtask 2.01—Preliminary Property Figures. West Yost shall prepare a preliminary figure (8-
1/2” x 11”) for each property to take along during backyard investigations to assist in recording 
information and collecting data.  West Yost has assumed up to 18 hours to prepare preliminary 
figures for 80 properties.   

Subtask 2.02—Backyard Investigations. Working with District staff, West Yost shall attempt to 
obtain approval of each resident prior to entering back yard to collect data.  West Yost shall provide 
a liaison to meet with each property owner/resident to document existing information, take 
photographic records of properties and identify the most likely alignment of the lateral relocation. 
West Yost shall make up to three separate visits for each property. West Yost shall not enter 
backyards without receiving the permission of the resident.  A Spanish speaking interpreter shall be 
provided during site visits.  West Yost has assumed up to 80 hours of investigation time each for an 
engineer and Spanish interpreter.

Subtask 2.03—Private Lateral Construction Figures.  West Yost shall prepare proposed 
construction figures (two 8-1/2” x 11” pages) for each property generally showing hardscape 
features (fences, driveways, sidewalks, patios) along the proposed private lateral alignment.  The 
figure shall be drawn in AutoCAD and will include features, proposed lateral location, site 
photographs, and proposed lateral relocation. The figures will be included with the Bid Documents 
as an appendix.  West Yost has assumed up to 140 hours to prepare the Proposed Construction 
Figures for 80 properties.

Subtask 2.04—Review Proposed Lateral Construction with Residents.  The District will 
conduct a second meeting with each resident to review the proposed construction for each 
owner/resident and will obtain their written approval of a construction license (form provided by 
District) authorizing the work. West Yost has assumed that it is not necessary for West Yost staff to 
accompany the District for the second meeting.  West Yost has assumed up to 16 hours to revise 
Proposed Construction Figures as requested by the District.

Subtask 2.05—Public Meeting. The District will prepare a presentation and conduct one public 
meeting for local residents.  The presentation will identify the project boundaries, purpose and 
reason for the project, description of the proposed construction, and impacts and benefits to the 
business, property owner, and resident.  West Yost shall attend the public meeting.  West Yost has 
assumed 2 hours of each staff member’s time for attendance at the meeting.

Task 3.  Surveying
This task includes surveying and preparing plat and legal descriptions by our subconsultant, Wilsey-
Ham.  

Subtask 3.01—Surveying. To verify utility potential utility conflicts, surveying shall be completed 
by our subcontractor, Wilsey-Ham.  West Yost has assumed a total of one day of surveying.

Subtask 3.02—Plats and Legal Descriptions.  It is assumed that the District will prepare and file a 
quitclaim document for sewer easements that will be quitclaimed.  The Engineer shall prepare up to 

5/4/2015 2 Task Order No.6 
TO6_Newark Phase 3__Final Union Sanitary District
Page 75 of 147



two plats and legal descriptions for each easement to be quitclaimed. Plats and legal descriptions 
shall be prepared based on record information only; no boundary survey is included.  

Task 4.  Utility Coordination  
This task includes services for utility coordination, potholing, permitting, and agency coordination.

Subtask 4.01—Review Existing Information.  Review existing information including block book 
information, record drawings, TV inspection logs and tapes, previous studies, and general site 
reconnaissance of the area.

Subtask 4.02—Utility Coordination. At the beginning of the design phase, utility coordination 
letters shall be mailed to all known utility companies within the project area for courtesy notification 
and to identify utility locations and receive utility comments.  Preliminary drawings shall also be 
mailed to the utility companies following the 75 and 90 percent design submittal.  Review responses 
from agencies and update drawings as required.

Subtask 4.03—Utility Potholing (Optional). If it is determined during preliminary design that 
utility potholing is necessary, potholing will be completed by the District.  West Yost will prepare 
potholing plan and up to two utility relocation figures as requested by the District.  West Yost has 
assumed a total of 16 hours to prepare potholing plan and relocation figures. 

Subtask 4.04—Permits and Agency Coordination.  Engineer will coordinate with City of 
Newark.  Preliminary drawings shall also be mailed to the City of Newark following the 75 and 90 
percent design submittal.  The Engineer shall review responses from the City and update drawings 
as required.

Task 5.  Design  
This task will prepare a final design to relocate sewer mains and private laterals from the backyard 
to the front using a combination of open cut construction (for connections and where necessary) and 
horizontal directional drilling (HDD).  

Subtask 5.01—Design Drawings.  Drawings shall be prepared using AutoCAD conforming to 
USD digital submittal guidelines.  The design shall be plotted at a scale of 1”=40’ horizontal and 
1”=4’ vertical plan and profiles and appropriately scaled details.  Approximately 15 drawing sheets 
are anticipated.  The backyard figures developed in Subtask 2.04 shall be included in the Bid 
Documents as an appendix.  

Subtask 5.02—Specifications.  Specifications shall be prepared in Microsoft Word format.
Engineer shall prepare technical specifications, notice inviting bids, instructions to bidders, bid 
schedule and supplementary general conditions in CSI format and based on District Standards.  
District will provide contract documents, general conditions and general requirements in Microsoft 
Word Format.

Subtask 5.03—Construction Cost Estimate.  Engineer shall develop a construction cost estimate 
at the 75, 90 and 100 percent design completion levels.

5/4/2015 3 Task Order No.6 
TO6_Newark Phase 3__Final Union Sanitary District
Page 76 of 147



Task 6.  Bid Support Services  
The purpose of this task is to assist the District during the bidding of the Project.  The District will 
advertise and distribute bid documents.

Subtask 6.01—Prebid Meeting. West Yost shall conduct the pre-bid meeting, attend site walk,
and prepare minutes for distribution. 

Subtask 6.02—Bidder Inquiries and Bid Evaluation.  West Yost shall assist in answering 
bidders' technical questions during the bid period. Engineer will assist District in bid evaluation.

Subtask 6.03—Addenda.  West Yost shall prepare addenda during the bid period to be distributed 
by the District.

3. DELIVERABLES

Project deliverables are listed below:

Meeting agendas, meeting minutes, and project schedule updates.
Five sets of draft plans and specifications at 75 and 90 percent completion levels.
One set of 100 percent completion level plans and specifications in Word and PDF format 
for printing and bid advertisement.
Cost estimate at 75, 90 and 100 percent completion levels.
Drawing files in AutoCAD 2013 format stored in disc.
Addenda and email documentation of phone conversations with bidders.

4. PROJECT COORDINATION

All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the District’s Project Manager, 
Rollie Arbolante. 

5. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER

Compensation shall be on a time and materials cost basis for services provided under Article 2 of 
this Agreement in accordance with the Billing Rate Schedule contained in Exhibit B (updated 
annually) except that subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 5%, outside services will be 
billed at actual cost, and mileage will be billed at prevailing IRS standard mileage rate.  The 
billing rate schedule is generally comparable to a labor multiplier of approximately 3.22. 

The estimated costs for Tasks 1 through 6 are presented in Exhibit C.  Total charges to the District 
shall not exceed the cost ceiling of $159,760.

The following table summarizes all task orders and amendments, if any, including those 
previously executed under the Agreement, ending with this Task Order: 

5/4/2015 4 Task Order No.6 
TO6_Newark Phase 3__Final Union Sanitary District
Page 77 of 147



Task Order / Amendment Not to Exceed 
Amount

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 
(Yes/No)

District Staff Approval 

Task Order No. 1
Preliminary Design $52,772 No Rich Currie

Task Order No. 2
Phase 1 Detailed Design $76,352 Yes Rich Currie

Task Order No. 3
Phase 1 Services During 

Construction
$15,262 No Sami Ghossain

Task Order No. 4
Phase 2 Detailed Design $230,239 Yes Rich Currie

Task Order No. 5
Phase 2 Services During 

Construction
$32,908 No Sami Ghossain

Task Order No. 6 
Phase 3 Detailed Design $159,760 Yes Paul Eldredge 

Total $567,293

6. TIME OF COMPLETION

All work defined in Item 2 shall be completed in accordance with the project schedule shown in 
Exhibit D.  

7. KEY PERSONNEL

Key engineering personnel or subconsultants assigned to Task Order No. 6 are as follows:

Role Personnel/Subconsultant

Principal-in-Charge John D. Goodwin

Project Manager Thea Durbin

Project Engineer David Pezzini

Surveyor Wilsey-Ham, Ken Moore

Key personnel shall not change except in accordance with Article 8 of the Agreement. 

5/4/2015 5 Task Order No.6 
TO6_Newark Phase 3__Final Union Sanitary District
Page 78 of 147



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task Order No. 6 as of 
________________ and therewith incorporated it as part of the Agreement.

ENGINEER:

WEST YOST & ASSOCIATES

By: _________________________________
John D. Goodwin
Vice President

DISTRICT:

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT

By:  ________________________________
Paul R. Eldredge, P.E.
General Manager / District Engineer

5/4/2015 6 Task Order No.6 
TO6_Newark Phase 3__Final Union Sanitary District
Page 79 of 147





2015 Billing Rate Schedule 
(Effective January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015)*

ENGINEERING 

Position 
Labor Charges 

(dollars per hour) 
Principal/Vice President 253 
Engineering/Scientist/Geologist Manager II 242 
Engineering/Scientist/Geologist Manager I 232 
Principal Engineer/Scientist/Geologist II 224 
Principal Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I 211 
Senior Engineer/Scientist/Geologist II 198 
Senior Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I 189 
Associate Engineer/Scientist/Geologist II 179 
Associate Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I 167 
Engineer/Scientist/Geologist II 157 
Engineer/Scientist/Geologist I 136 
Senior GIS Analyst 184 
GIS Analyst 174 
CAD Supervisor 146 
Senior CAD Designer 127 
CAD Designer 113 
Engineering Aide 76 
Technical Specialist IV 143 
Technical Specialist III 127 
Technical Specialist II 110 
Technical Specialist I 92 
Administrative IV 116
Administrative III 105 
Administrative II 87
Administrative I 69 

 Hourly rates include Technology and Communication charges such as general and 
CAD computer, software, telephone, routine in-house copies/prints, postage, 
miscellaneous supplies, and other incidental project expenses. 

 Outside Services such as vendor reproductions, prints, shipping, and major West Yost 
reproduction efforts, as well as Engineering Supplies, Travel, etc. will be billed at 
actual cost. 

 Mileage will be billed at the current Federal Rate. 

 Subconsultants will be billed at actual cost plus 5%. 

 Expert witness, research, technical review, analysis, preparation and meetings billed 
at 150% of standard hourly rates.  Expert witness testimony and depositions billed at 
200% of standard hourly rates. 

 A Finance Charge of 1.5% per month (an Annual Rate of 18%) on the unpaid balance 
will be added to invoice amounts if not paid within 45 days from the date of the invoice. 

     
Continues on following page 

*This schedule is updated annuallyPage 81 of 147

EXHIBIT B



2015 Billing Rate Schedule 
(Effective January 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015)*

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT 

Position 
Labor Charges 

(dollars per hour) 
Senior Construction Manager 244 
Construction Manager IV 212 
Construction Manager III 170 
Construction Manager II 159 
Construction Manager I 148 
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 1) 165 
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 2) 159 
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 3) 142 
Resident Inspector (Prevailing Wage – Group 4) 127 
Apprentice Inspector 117
CM Administrative II 85 
CM Administrative I 64

SURVEYING 

Position 
Labor Charges 

(dollars per hour) 
GPS, 3-Person 387 
GPS, 2-Person 336 
GPS, 1-Person 261 
Survey Crew, 2-Person 284 
Survey Crew, 1-Person 214 

EQUIPMENT CHARGES 

Equipment 
Billing Rate 

(dollars per day) 
Billing Rate 

(dollars per week) 
DO Meter 17 83
pH Meter 5 26
Automatic Sampler 130 712 
Transducer/Data Logger 41 206 
Hydrant Pressure Gage 12 50
Hydrant Pressure Recorder (HPR) — 206 
Hydrant Wrench 5 33
Well Sounder 29 134 
Ultrasonic Flow Meter — 269 
Vehicle 88 445 
Velocity Meter 12 65
Water Quality Multimeter 176 964 

*This schedule is updated annually Page 82 of 147



P
ag

e 
83

 o
f 1

47



ID
Ta

sk
N

am
e

Du
ra

tio
n

1
N

ot
ic

e
to

Pr
oc

ee
d

0
da

ys
2

1.
Pr

oj
ec

tM
an

ag
em

en
t

21
9

da
ys

3
Pr

og
re

ss
M

ee
tin

gs
14

9
da

ys
4

Ki
ck

of
fM

ee
tin

g
0

da
ys

5
M

ee
tin

g
2

0
da

ys
6

M
ee

tin
g

3
0

da
ys

7
Q

A/
Q

C
Te

ch
ni

ca
lR

ev
ie

w
75

%
5

da
ys

8
Q

A/
Q

C
Te

ch
ni

ca
lR

ev
ie

w
90

%
5

da
ys

9
Q

A/
Q

C
Te

ch
ni

ca
lR

ev
ie

w
Fi

na
l

5
da

ys
10

2.
Pu

bl
ic

O
ut

re
ac

h
14

4
da

ys
11

Pr
el

im
in

ar
y

Pr
op

er
ty

Fi
gu

re
s

14
da

ys
12

Ba
ck

ya
rd

In
ve

st
ig

at
io

ns
30

da
ys

13
Pr

iv
at

e
La

te
ra

lC
on

st
ru

ct
io

n
Fi

gu
re

s
20

da
ys

14
Pr

iv
at

e
La

te
ra

lF
ig

ur
es

W
ith

Re
sid

en
ts

90
da

ys
15

Pu
bl

ic
M

ee
tin

g
0

da
ys

16
3.

Su
rv

ey
in

g
10

da
ys

19
4.

U
til

ity
Co

or
di

na
tio

n
90

da
ys

20
Re

vi
ew

Ex
ist

in
g

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

14
da

ys
21

U
til

ity
Co

or
di

na
tio

n
30

da
ys

22
U

til
ity

Po
th

ol
in

g
(O

pt
io

na
l)

5
da

ys
23

Pe
rm

its
an

d
Ag

en
cy

Co
or

di
na

tio
n

60
da

ys
24

6.
De

si
gn

18
0

da
ys

25
Pr

ep
ar

e
75

%
Su

bm
itt

al
60

da
ys

26
U

SD
Re

vi
ew

Pe
rio

d
10

da
ys

27
Pr

ep
ar

e
90

%
Su

bm
itt

al
40

da
ys

28
U

SD
Re

vi
ew

Pe
rio

d
15

da
ys

29
Pr

ep
ar

e
Fi

na
lD

oc
um

en
ts

40
da

ys
30

De
sig

n
Co

m
pl

et
io

n
0

da
ys

31
7.

Bi
d

Pe
rio

d
Se

rv
ic

es
22

da
ys

32
Ad

ve
rt

ise
fo

rB
id

di
ng

0
da

ys
33

Bi
d

Pe
rio

d
22

da
ys

34
Bi

d
O

pe
ni

ng
0

da
ys

5/
12

5/
12

8/
28

12
/4

5/
28

2/
5 2/
9

3/
10

Ap
r

M
ay

Ju
n

Ju
l

Au
g

Se
p

O
ct

N
ov

De
c

Ja
n

Fe
b

M
ar

Ap
r

20
16

EX
HI

BI
T

D
N

ew
ar

k
Ba

ck
ya

rd
Sa

ni
ta

ry
Se

w
er

Re
lo

ca
tio

n
Pr

oj
ec

t
Ph

as
e

3
U

ni
on

Sa
ni

ta
ry

Di
st

ric
t

FI
N

AL
:F

ri
5/

1/
15

Pa
ge

1
P

ag
e 

84
 o

f 1
47



P
ag

e 
85

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
86

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
87

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
88

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
89

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
90

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
91

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
92

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
93

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
94

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
95

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
96

 o
f 1

47



P
ag

e 
97

 o
f 1

47



Page 98 of 147



Page 99 of 147



Page 100 of 147



Page 101 of 147



Page 102 of 147



Page 103 of 147



Page 104 of 147



Page 105 of 147



Page 106 of 147



Page 107 of 147



Page 108 of 147



Page 109 of 147



Page 110 of 147



Page 111 of 147



Page 112 of 147



Page 113 of 147



Page 114 of 147



Page 115 of 147



Page 116 of 147



Page 117 of 147



Page 118 of 147



Page 119 of 147



Page 120 of 147



Page 121 of 147



Page 122 of 147



Page 123 of 147



Page 124 of 147



Page 125 of 147



Page 126 of 147



Page 127 of 147



Page 128 of 147



Page 129 of 147



Page 130 of 147



Page 131 of 147



Page 132 of 147



Page 133 of 147



Page 134 of 147



Page 135 of 147



Page 136 of 147



Page 137 of 147



Page 138 of 147



Page 139 of 147



Page 140 of 147



Page 141 of 147



Page 142 of 147



Page 143 of 147



Page 144 of 147



Page 145 of 147



Page 146 of 147



Page 147 of 147



Desk Item  
Item No. 8 

Personnel Committee Redline 

Union Sanitary District 
 

Manager of Business Services/Chief Financial Officer 
Class Description 

 
 

DEFINITION 
 
Reporting  to  the  General  Manager  and  under  administrative  direction,  the  Business  Services 
Manager/Chief  Financial  Officer  (BS  Manager/CFO)  manages  the  Business  Services  Work  Group, 
including the development and implementation of work group and team goals, objectives, and priorities 
for  each  service  area; and manages  the  District‐wide  administrative  functions  of  finance,  budgeting, 
accounting,  internal  audit,  investments,  and  financial  analyses;  centralized  purchasing,  central  stores, 
and  inventory control;  safety;  risk management; organizational performance;  training; and  information 
technology. Human Resources  resides within  the Business  Services Work Group; however,  the Human 
Resources Administrator works directly with the General Manager to strategically manage the District’s 
Human Resources Program. 

 
The BS Manager/CFO works directly with the General Manager, Board of Directors, and Executive Team 
to  develop,  implement,  and manage  District‐wide  goals,  objectives  and  strategic  planning  as well  as 
financing plans set forth by policy, ordinance, and Board approval. 

 
This  position  manages  all  accounting  and  finance  functions,  including  but  not  limited  to  financial 
reporting,  short‐ and  long‐range economic  forecasts and analyses, budgets, management of unfunded 
liabilities, audits,  investment management, contracts,  long‐term debt  issuance, revenue, cash flow, and 
rate setting. 

 
EXAMPLES OF DUTIES 

 
Financial Operations 

 
 This  classification  ensures  compliance  with  regulatory  and  governmental  accounting  and 

financial  reporting  standards,  including  IRS,  SCO,  GASB,  GAAP  PERS,  ICMA  and  other  legal 
requirements  relating  to  sound  financial  and  administrative  operations  and  consistency  of 
financial operations with principles of good stewardship of public funds and the District’s  strategic 
objectives. 

 Oversees and participates in preparation of the District’s O & M and CIP budgets and forecasting 
of cash flows for the operating budget and capital expenditures and revenues; identifies impacts 
on the current and future rate structure; oversees establishment of financial  controls  and  review 
of  expenditures  for  conformance  with  approved  budgets;  and  presents  budget 
recommendations to the Board of Directors for their approval. 

 Serves  as  the  District’s  Board‐appointed  Treasurer;  manages  the  District’s  investments  and 
portfolio,  maximizing  income  and  safety  through  daily  and  long‐range  investment  policies; 
administers bond programs and  secures  tax‐exempt and other  types of  financing;  coordinates, 
reviews,  evaluates,  and  recommends  improvements  to  administrative  and  financial  internal 
control  systems and procedures  to  ensure audit  compliance;  and annually  review  reviews  the 
District's  investment policy and recommends revisions to the Board of Directors. 

 Ensures conformance with Proposition 218 legal notification for rate changes. 



Desk Item  
Item No. 8 

Personnel Committee Redline 

 Directs  and  participates  in  the  preparation  of  a  variety  of  records  and  reports  ensuring 
timeliness,  accuracy,  and  compliance  with  appropriate  laws,  ordinances,  regulations,  and 
prudent fiscal transparency. 

 
Information Technology 
 

 Oversees implementation of the IT Master Plan. 
 Ensures  that District employees  receive  timely  and effective assistance  through an automated 

Help  Desk  function;  and  periodically  evaluates  the  cost  effectiveness  of  existing  software  to 
meet user needs. 

 Oversees  and  approves  IT  renewal  and  replacement  expenditures  and  oversees  periodic 
external security audit. 

 Ensures that recommendations deemed appropriate by the Executive Team are implemented. 
 
Purchasing and Risk Management 
 

 Oversees the District’s general liability, property damage, vehicular physical damage,  catastrophe 
insurance, loss recovery, and crime insurance programs. 

 Coordinates  annual  application  to  CSRMA  for  liability  and  property  insurance.  Periodically 
reviews District insurance coverage. 

 Assists  the  Purchasing  Agent  to  resolve  contract  law  issues  or  interpretation  of  the District’s 
purchasing policy with  regard  to  specific  situations and  reviews  recommended  changes  to  the 
District’s Purchasing policy. 

 Oversees  the administration of claims against the District  to  ensure  timely response, appropriate 
referral  to  legal  counsel,  timely  communication  with  the  General  Manager  and  Board  of 
Directors,  and  resolution  or  settlement  of  claims  consistent  with  the  Mission  and  values of 
the District. 

 
Organizational Performance 
 

 Supports  the  Organizational  Performance  Program  Manager  in  the  development  and 
implementation of quality initiatives at the team, work group, and District levels. 

 Works with  the  OPPM and  Executive  Team  to develop  and  implement  Balanced  Scorecard 
District‐wide initiatives, goals, measures, and implementation plans. 

 
Management Responsibilities 
 
The  Business  Services  Manager/Chief  Financial  Officer  is  a  resource  to  the  Board  of  Directors  on 
technical and management issues. 
 
The incumbent participates as a member of the USD Executive Team in District‐wide policy and planning 
activities,  including  development  of  the  District’s  Balanced  Scorecard  and  other  strategic  planning 
activities; provides advice and  counsel  regarding  strategic policy and problem  solving  issues  related  to 
the  assigned  workgroup  and  the  District  overall;  develops  performance  measures  and  implements 
objectives  to meet  District  goals;  supports  district‐wide  programs  and  initiatives;  ensures  that  team 
plans are in alignment with District‐wide and work group strategic plans. 



Desk Item  
Item No. 8 

Personnel Committee Redline 

The BS Manager/CFO develops and administers  the annual budget; manages and  carries out  technical 
and  administrative  projects;  and  occasionally  performs  the  duties  of General Manager  on  an  interim 
basis in the General Manager’s absence. 

 
The BS Manager/CFO  develops, promotes,  supports,  and  ensures  compliance with District‐wide, work 
group, and  team  safety policies, procedures, and  safety  initiatives and participates  in  investigations of 
serious accidents. 

 
The  BS Manager/CFO  establishes  appropriate  service  and  staffing  levels; monitors  and  evaluates  the 
efficiency and effectiveness of service delivery methods and procedures; and works with staff to allocate 
resources accordingly. 

 
This position oversees and participates  in the development and administration of the Business Services 
Work Group;  approves  the  forecast  of  funds  needed  for  staffing,  equipment, materials,  and  supplies; 
and approves expenditures and implements budgetary adjustments as needed. 

 
This position monitors legal, economic, and business developments in finance and portfolio management, 
public purchasing,  information technology,  risk management, and human  resources; and  recommends 
and initiates improved work methods and procedures as appropriate. 

 
The BS Manager/CFO serves as  liaison with  federal, state,  regional, county, city, and other agencies as 
necessary. 

 
Leadership 

 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer  carries out  recruitment and  selection, employee 
relations, performance management, and recognition activities for the work group. The BS Manager/CFO 
supervises and mentors  the BS Coach and provides general management and mentoring  (as required) 
of the Human Resources Administrator in carrying out their responsibilities  in each of the  areas  stated 
above  and  assists management  staff  to work  effectively with  individual  employees  and  teams. 

 
The  Business  Services  Manager/Chief  Financial  Officer  may  directly  supervise  one  of  the  BS  teams 
depending on their knowledge, skills, and abilities. 

 
The  incumbent  supports  the Business  Services Coach  in working with  the Organizational  Performance 
Program Manager (OPPM) and BS teams to apply the principles of total quality to day‐to‐day operations, 
including the development and application of benchmarking data, other work group metrics,  and  process 
improvements; and supports the Star Point and Team Coordinator programs, and other District  programs 
and initiatives. 

 
Interpersonal Abilities 

 
The  Business  Services Manager/Chief  Financial Officer  practices  clear,  timely,  honest  communication, 
promoting  openness, mutual  respect,  and  collaborative  working  relationships;  helps  create  a  strong 
performance ethic within the work group; encourages initiative and risk‐taking; and mentors the  Business 
Services  Coach  and  Human  Resources  Administrator  to  help  their  teams  work  effectively,  including 
managing conflict and change. 



Desk Item  
Item No. 8 

Personnel Committee Redline 

 

QUALIFICATIONS 
 
Education  and  Experience:  A  typical way  to  have  gained  the  qualifications  to  perform  the  duties  of 
Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer is: 

 
 Bachelor’s  degree  with  major  coursework  in  finance,  accounting,  public  or  business 

administration, or a closely  related  field. Certification as a Certified Public Accountant  (CPA)  is 
highly desirable. 

 Seven years’  increasingly  responsible experience  in public  financing and accounting; a working 
knowledge of the other functional areas is desired. Three years’ experience must have been in a 
supervisory or management capacity. 

 
Knowledge  of:  Local  governmental  financial management  principles  and  practices,  including  financial 
planning,  accounting,  budgeting,  investments,  debt  financing,  purchasing,  information  technology, 
economic analysis, and forecasting procedures; 
principles and practices of general,  fund,  cost, governmental accounting, auditing, Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles  (GAAP) and  financial  control; pertinent  federal,  state, and  local  laws,  codes, and 
regulations  including  those  related  to  investments,  purchasing;  office  procedures,  methods  and 
equipment  including  computers  and  applicable  software  applications  such  as  word  processing, 
spreadsheets, and databases; training; safety; and risk management. 

 
Ability to: Manage and direct a comprehensive public agency finance program; prepare and administers 
administer  large and complex budgets; analyze financial data and prepare findings; analyze financial and 
accounting  reports; prepare clear and concise administrative and financial reports; prepare complex short 
and  long  range  economic  forecasts  and  analyses;  interpret  complex  statutory  regulations  and 
requirements;  communicate  clearly  and  concisely,  both  orally  and  in writing  in  English;  be  skilled  at 
making  presentations to the Board of Directors, professional and community groups, and other District 
staff;  plan, organize, direct and coordinate the work of others; select, supervise, train, and evaluate staff; 
and  interpret and apply applicable federal, state, and local policies, laws, and regulations. 

 
The Business Services Manager/Chief Financial Officer must have a clear understanding of the District's 
goals  and  be  able  to  communicate  these  goals;  be  able  to  conceptualize  and  translate  concepts  into 
programs; and use excellent  judgment  in carrying out both  technical and management  responsibilities, 
addressing  issues with  integrity,  fairness, and flexibility. The  incumbent must effectively delegate work; 
identify and mitigate potential problems; learn from mistakes and allow subordinates to do the same. 

 
The  BS  Manager/CFO  must  also  have  outstanding  verbal  communication  and  interpersonal  skills; 
understand  the  interests  of  others  and   work  collaboratively;  promote  support  by  staff  for  his/her 
decisions;  establish  and  maintain  excellent  working  relationships  with  District  staff,  the  Board  of 
Directors, outside agencies, consultants, and the public; positively influence others; be a mentor, coach, 
and team player; and possess strong written communication skills. 

 
Licenses, Certificates, or Credentials: Must possess a valid Class C California driver's  license, have  and 
maintain a satisfactory driving record, and be insurable by the District to operate District vehicles. 



Desk Item  
Item No. 8 

Personnel Committee Redline 

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION 
 
Other  Requirements:  Must  affirm  a  loyalty  oath  as  a  Disaster  Service  Worker  under  California 
Government Code Section 3100‐3109, complete  related  training, and return  to work as ordered  in  the 
event  of  an  emergency.  Must  file  a  conflict  of  interest  statement.  Must  possess  the  physical 
characteristics to perform the critical and important duties of the job. 

 
Disaster Service Worker 
Employees  of  Union  Sanitary District  are,  by  State  and  Federal  law,  Disaster  Service Workers.  In  the 
event  of  a  declaration  of  emergency,  any  employee  may  be  assigned  activities  that  promote  the 
protection of public health and safety or the preservation of  lives and property, either at the District or 
within the local, or their own community. 

 
Approved by the Board of Directors: 1997 
Revised: October, 2008 
Position status: Unclassified, Exempt (Adm/Mgr/Sup) 


















	05-11-15 Board Packet
	8 DESK ITEM - Redline Class Description - Busienss Services Manager
	10 DESK ITEM - Redline Agreement

